
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


August 14, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on August 14, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


Chairman Brown called the August 14, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.


Invocation by Vice Chairman Charles Oddo


Vice Chairman Oddo introduced Deacon Tony Cuomo of the Holy Trinity Catholic Church, and he asked Deacon
Cuomo to offer the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Vice Chairman Oddo introduced Boy Scout Tollam Stephens and asked him to lead all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Mr. Stephens then led the Commissioners and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #13-a







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation recognizing the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee and to Proclaim the Month of
September as Cancer Wellness Month.


Commissioner Barlow recognized the Cancer Wellness Walk Committee and proclaimed the month of
September as Cancer Wellness Month.  Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment
1,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


2. Recognition of the Association of Village Pride, Inc. (AVPRIDE), Career Exploration / Internship
Program.


Commissioner Barlow recognized the Association of Village Pride, Inc. (AVPRIDE), Career Exploration /
Internship Program.  Copies of the request and recognition, identified as “Attachment 2,” follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


3. Recognition of Ms. Jordan Fason and Ms. Cameron King for being selected to represent Fayette
County in the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) program.


Chairman Brown, Tyrone Mayor Eric Dial, and Fayette County’s Citizen Representative to the Atlanta
Regional Commission Mr. Bob Reeves recognized Ms. Jordan Fason and Ms. Cameron King for being
selected to represent Fayette County in the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) program.  Copies
of the request and recognition, identified as “Attachment 3,” follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


4. Recognition of the Sandy Creek High School Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) club for
placing in the top ten at the FBLA National Leadership Conference.


Commissioner Oddo recognized the Sandy Creek High School Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA)
club for placing in the top ten at the FBLA National Leadership Conference.  Copies of the request and
recognition, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5. Proclamation honoring Frank and Melba Gardner who are celebrating their 58th Wedding
Anniversary.


Commissioner McCarty read the proclamation honoring Mr. Frank Gardner and Mrs. Melba Gardner who
recently celebrated their 58th Wedding Anniversary.  The Gardners met in the first grade and attended
school together for twelve years.  They were married on August 10, 1956 at New Providence Baptist
Church.  They have two children, six grandchildren, and five great-grandchildren.  Copies of the request
and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 5,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no items on the Agenda for Public Hearing.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 3


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Consent Agenda Items six through nine.  Commissioner Barlow seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


6. Approval of staff’s request for a FY 2015 budget adjustment of $50,000.00 to be added to Personal
Property Tax revenue and the Tax Assessor’s technical services in order to contract with an outside
firm that will assist with audits of Personal Property accounts.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the annual Equitable Sharing
Agreement and Certification document, as required by the United States Department of Justice and
the United States Department of the Treasury.  Copies of the request and Equitable Sharing
Agreement and Certification document, identified as “Attachment 7,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of the Water System’s request to award Bid #900- Water Distribution Parts to eight
companies that were low bidders on items used for distribution and repair in an aggregate amount
not to exceed $256,709.30.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the July 24, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no items on the Agenda for Old Business.


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint John Culbreath to the
McIntosh Trail Community Service Board, for a three-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring
June 30, 2017.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the recommendation to reappoint John Culbreath to the McIntosh
Trail Community Service Board, for a three-year term, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2017. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Karen Spangler to the
Fayette County Department of Family and Children Services Board, for a five-year term, beginning
July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2019.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Karen
Spangler to the Fayette County Department of Family and Children Services Board, for a five-year term,
beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2019.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 4


12. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Briana MacDowell to Post 2
of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four-year term, beginning June 1, 2014 and
expiring May 31, 2018.
Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Briana
MacDowell to Post 2 of the Fayette County Recreation Commission, for a four-year term, beginning June 1,
2014 and expiring May 31, 2018.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


13. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Bradley Klinger to Post 5 of
the Fayette County Recreation Commission, to fill an unexpired term, beginning April 11, 2014 and
expiring March 31, 2016.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept recommendation to appoint Bradley Klinger to Post 5 of the Fayette
County Recreation Commission, to fill an unexpired term, beginning April 11, 2014 and expiring March 31,
2016.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


14. Consideration of staff’s request to enter into an agreement with Hopeful Community Club for the
purpose of preserving the Hopeful Primitive Church.


Chairman Brown informed all present that there was additional information on the dais that included an
updated PowerPoint presentation and two email documents.  He stated those documents were available
from the County Clerk’s office.


Chairman Brown introduced the interns to the audience and spoke about their work and potential.  He
pointed out that all the interns are rising juniors except for Ms. Kyra Parks who is a rising senior.


Interns Kyra Parks and Vanessa Johnson gave a PowerPoint presentation on staff’s request to enter into an
agreement with Hopeful Community Club for the purpose of preserving the Hopeful Primitive Baptist Church.


Chairman Brown spoke about the experience the interns received working on this project.  


Commissioner Oddo stated that the interns did good work.  Commissioner Ognio said he was not in
agreement with the “water meter situation” since he could not provide the people’s money to property that
was not owned or leased by the County.  He added that he would be more than happy to help the church
raise funds, and that he would be more than happy to contribute to the effort, but he had a problem with the
county giving money to the county.


County Administrator Steve Rapson pointed out the three differences between the agreement provided to
the Board in the Agenda package and the red-lined version of the agreement provided with an email on the
dais.


Chairman Brown said he had no problem with providing a water meter to the church since it was a minimal
cost and since there was only one chance to take care of a historical property.  He also spoke about the
Historic County Courthouse and Starr’s Mill, both of which are supported by the county and were built in the
same timeframe that the church was built in.  He said he did not want to lose this historical building and its
cemetery; both of which are in bad shape.  He stressed that if something is not done quickly it the building







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 5


would be in real danger.  Chairman Brown also spoke about how the church’s early construction is still
evident, and he spoke about the historical significance the church had for the community in the early days of
Fayette County.


Commissioner Oddo stated that this was an issue of making decisions either with the heart or the head, and
he said these decisions do not always comport with each other.  He agreed with everything the Chairman
stated about the church’s historical significance, but he could not see how to use public funds for private use. 
He stated that he was willing and able to make just as Commissioner Ognio had stated earlier, but that the
question was how to use public funds for private uses.  Commissioner Oddo said he was not completely
comfortable with the red-lined version of the agreement, and that he did not feel comfortable taking tax
money and dedicating it to something that the County may not have the right to support.  He said he would
be willing to make a motion to approve the agreement provided by the county attorney in the agenda
package with the additional agreement to control of the inside tours going to the nonprofit group.  He
stressed that the county should do everything it could to provide assistance, but that the Board had to
consider its use of public funds.


Commissioner McCarty suggested that if the county donated a water meter to the nonprofit organization then
it would owe a water meter to every other nonprofit organization in the county, and that would be unfair to the
taxpayers of Fayette County.


Commissioner Barlow stated that everyone wanted to do something good for the church but that this issue
was getting muddy.  He pointed out that the wording from the agreement provided by the county attorney
had been stricken out of the agreement with the red-lined version of the agreement, and he read the stricken
portion of the agreement into the record.  He concluded that he could not agree to any other proposal other
than that which was provided to the Board by the county attorney in the Agenda package.


Chairman Brown respectfully disagreed with some of the conclusions from the other Board members and he
spoke about the other nonprofit organizations that receive support from the Board.


Dean Breest: Mr. Breest, one of the trustees of the Hopeful Community Club, stated that the agreement as
drafted by the county attorney was rejected by the club and that the club would stand by the changes in the
red-lined version of the agreement.  He thought the county would move in a different direction, but it was
clear to him that the Board would not support this effort.  


Commissioner Oddo said it was not a matter of how much money would be spent, but that he had to respect
where the funds come from since it is public money.  Mr. Breest relied on Chairman Brown’s points that
money had been spent in the past for nonprofit organizations.  Commissioner Oddo replied that there were
differences and nuances between different nonprofit organizations and those differences would work in
determining which nonprofit could receive public support.  Commissioner Barlow added that he would be
glad to give personal support to this initiative.


Mr. Rapson provided clarity to some of the points that were made concerning the cost for a water meter.  


The Board did not vote and did not give further direction on this matter. Copies of the request, PowerPoint
presentation, and additional dais information, identified as “Attachment 13,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 6


15. Discussion of the Fayette County’s interns’ findings and options concerning a safe golf path and
crossing for the Starr’s Mill school complex along Redwine Road.


Chairman Brown informed all present that there were several document on the dais including an updated
PowerPoint presentation and three email documents.  He stated that the additional dais documents could be
obtained from the County Clerk’s office.


Interns Tessa Strickland and Khalil Johnson gave a PowerPoint presentation on their findings and options
concerning a safe golf path and crossing for the Starr’s Mill school complex along Redwine Road.  The
interns told the Board that they came to the following conclusions:


a) Reduce Redwine Road’s school zone speed to 25 miles per hour during school zone hours.


b) 2,500 feet expansion of the path system on Redwine Road.


c) New crossing at Redwine Road near the controlled intersection where the Sheriff’s Deputy is present that


includes a median/safe island.  We would also like to add a 3-D crosswalk.


d) New crossing location on Panther Path that includes a speed table that will slow traffic and allow for safer


cart crossings.


Chairman Brown spoke about the experiences the interns had by working with the Public Works Department,
the Board of Education, and the Sheriff’s Office.


David Kazusko: Mr. Kazusko, President of Jefferson Wood subdivision, spoke about his appreciation with
the recent changes Fayette County has passed opening access for golf carts throughout Fayette County. 
He mentioned that he had been patient for approximately sixteen years while working with the City of
Peachtree City, Mayor Brown, and other boards and councils in an effort to expand the golf cart paths and
access to them.  He commended the interns for their work, and he offered alternative options for safely
crossing Redwine Road.  


Scott Fabricius: Mr. Fabricius, President of Whitewater Creek Homeowners Association, said he
appreciated the interns’ work.  He stated that he spoke on behalf of Whitewater Creek and that he totally
supported the findings and options given by the interns.  He then told the Board why Whitewater Creek
supported the presented options. 


James Rubalcava: Mr. Rubalcava, a member of Whitewater Creek’s Safety and Exit Control Committee and
a resident of Whitewater Creek, agreed with Mr. Fabricius with one exception.  He opposed having a stop
sign at Whitewater Road since there could be alternatives to a stop sign that would mitigate acknowledged
safety concerns in the area. 


Bob Mudrinich: Mr. Mudrinich, a resident of Woodcreek Subdivision, thanked the interns for their work, and
he thought they did a great job for giving a great presentation.  He supported the options provided by the
interns, and he spoke for approximately eight minutes about why he supported the effort.  He urged the
Board to forward this work to the Board of Education for its consideration as well.    







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 7


Deputy Superintendent Sam Sweat: Deputy Superintendent of the Fayette County Board of Education
Sam Sweat congratulated the interns for their outstanding presentation.  He informed everyone that the
Board of Education would hold a workshop meeting on September 8, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.  Mr. Sweat asked for
the interns to give their presentation to the Board of Education at the workshop meeting.  He agreed with
most of Mr. Mudrinich’s comments, and he offered some options and thoughts on the matter.


Lara Dial: Ms. Dial asked the Board to consider a crossing at Whitewater and Birkdale subdivisions so that
those subdivisions could use the golf cart paths.


Commissioner Barlow told the interns that they did an outstanding presentation and he asked if they had
worked with the county engineer in drafting the proposals.  The interns replied that they had worked with the
county engineer in this effort.  Commissioner Barlow said it would be helpful for the presentation to read
“Endorsed by Phil Mallon, County Engineer.”  He stated that he also did not hear any costs associated with
the recommendations and that Mr. Mallon has the ability to closely estimate the cost for projects.  He then
asked Mr. Mallon if he wanted to provide an estimated cost.  Mr. Mallon declined to do so.


Chairman Brown pointed out that this presentation was to give a semblance of an idea of what could be
done to get people safely to the schools.  He added that he was going to ask for the Board’s consensus to
have the County Engineer follow through with the suggestions and to provide costs.  


Commissioner Barlow suggested informed the interns that Mr. Mallon is well respected in his field and, when
they present their material to the Board of Education, the presentation would carry a little more weight if it
included Mr. Mallon’s name.  Commissioner McCarty added that the Mr. Mallon did say that the proposals
were feasible.


Chairman Brown stated that the interns received a lot of practical experience during this work and that the
work also had early interaction and the “seal of approval” from the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office. Chairman
Brown stated that he wanted to see staff take the elements of the plan as presented, put them on paper, and
work on getting the cost for getting the students to the school site.


Chairman Brown asked everyone to remember that the Board of Education is a governmental entity unto
itself so it would have to approve any plans on its property even though the Board could get the proposals up
to the school’s property.  He stated that the information provided was excellent and viable, but that it would
have to include the Board of Education’s approval as well.  County Administrator Steve Rapson suggested
that staff could get with Mr. Mike Satterfield, the Director of Facility Services for the Fayette County Board of
Education, in order to get a turnkey analysis that would include costs for getting this proposal accomplished. 
Commissioner Oddo asked for alternatives to be considered as this initiative moves forward.


The Board directed county staff to work with Mr. Michael Satterfield and the Fayette County Board of
Education by taking the elements the interns presented and to provide the Board with a cost for getting
students to the school site, and to explore potential grant opportunities available for this project.  The Board
did not vote on this matter.  Copies of the request, PowerPoint presentation, and additional dais information,
identified as “Attachment 14,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 8


16. Discussion of the Fayette County’s interns’ findings and options concerning fluoride in Fayette
County’s water supply.


Chairman Brown notified the audience that there were additional documents on the dais including an
updated PowerPoint presentation and eight email documents.  He stated that the additional documents
could be provided from the County Clerk’s office.


Interns John Hlas and Haider Khan gave a PowerPoint presentation about findings and options concerning
fluoride in Fayette County’s water supply.  After giving their presentation, the interns provided three options
for the Board’s consideration:


a) Keep fluoride in the water.


b) Solicit a petition for a referendum on the discontinuation of water fluoridation.


c) A plan to please both sides: (O.C.G.A. § 12-5-175)- allow people to get fluoride removing pumps who


want fluoride out of the water and keep fluoridated water in the community.


Chairman Brown stated that the interns did mountains of research including reading several books and
studies.  He stated that the information was conflicting and so they had to sort the information provided.  He
said they had conference calls with Georgia Public Health representatives, with representatives from the
Centers of Disease Control, and with the Water System’s Director.  He said they did a great job explaining
both sides of the issue.


Commissioner Oddo asked the interns if they had formulated an opinion while going through the issue.  Mr.
Khan indicated that his opinion was neutral and Mr. Hlas stated that it was his opinion to allow the voters to
decide on this matter.  Chairman Brown asked if there was a referendum process required by the state.  Mr.
Hlas replied that there was a referendum process and he discussed how it would work.


Chairman Brown asked if he correctly understood that the state’s law required fluoride in the water unless
there was a medical problem, and, if so, then that person would have to have state permission to purchase a
filter that would remove fluoride.  County Attorney Dennis Davenport that he did not know of a prohibition
against anyone buying a fluoride filter, but that he understood the purchase could have a tax write-off if it
were purchased for medical purposes.


Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Hlas if he would be willing to head-up the group to initiate the referendum. 
Mr. Hlas replied that he was not sure how to answer the question since it was a difficult one to answer. 
Commissioner Barlow agreed it was a difficult question and said the Board of Commissioners was not given
the option of saying it did not have an opinion.  Chairman Brown reminded Commissioner Barlow that Mr.
Hlas was a junior in high school and that should be taken into consideration.


Dr. Barry Marcum: Dr. Marcum, a pediatric dentist, spoke in favor of not removing fluoride from the water
supply, saying it was the single most effective means available to prevent tooth decay.  He also answered
several questions from Chairman Brown, Commissioner Barlow, and Commissioner McCarty concerning
fluoride.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 9


Leslie Edwards: Ms. Edwards spoke in favor of removing fluoride from Fayette County’s water supply.  She
said the Harvard study clearly stated that fluoride can lower a person’s IQ.  She pointed out that the water
supply is already full of chemicals and she questioned how drinking eight ounces of fluoridated water a day
could be healthy.


Teresa Clark: Ms. Clark told about the adverse medical effects that fluoride had on her personally, and
spoke in favor of removing fluoride from Fayette County’s water supply.  She told about how she had a
thyroid condition.  She attributed the medication of the water supply as the reason for her medical condition,
and she told of those who are fighting to remove fluoride from the water.  She mentioned that just because
something has been done for thirty years does not make it right.


Andrea Lyle: Ms. Lyle spoke in favor of removing fluoride from Fayette County’s water supply.  She stated
that former Ambassador Andrew Young and Ms. Alveda King are speaking out in adamant opposition to
fluoride.  She then told the Board of a homemade remedy she mixed together for tooth pain, but that it also
makes her teeth and gums healthier and cleaner.  She said the issue was all about the money, and if fluoride
needed to be in the water then it needed to be the natural fluoride not the processed version.


Martin Smith: Mr. Smith spoke in favor of removing fluoride from Fayette County’s water supply.  He stated
that fluoridated water has been around since the 1950s.  He said he noticed that there are more dentists
around, that he had failing teeth, and now he has only dentures in his mouth.  He said fluoride did not do him
good except for, perhaps, affecting his brain.  He did not think people should be forced to drink fluoride.  He
did not see why people should be forced to drink fluoride, and he pointed out that people can fluoride
through from other locations.


Angela Bean: Ms. Bean spoke in favor of removing fluoride from Fayette County’s water supply.  She stated
that topical applications of fluoride may help, but ingestion does not.  She pointed out the studies opposing
fluoride and she asked if it was good to sacrifice mental health for dental health. 


The interns returned to briefly respond to some of the comments that were made by those who spoke in
favor and in opposition to keeping fluoride in Fayette County’s water supply.  


Dixianne Parker: Ms. Parker, from the Georgia Department of Public Health, asked the Board to consider
looking much further into this issue since there is more to consider before a referendum should be
considered.


Chairman Brown said the Board had been given excellent presentations and he said he appreciated the
interns’ hard work and dedication.


Commissioner Barlow stated that when Commissioners were sworn into office they took an oath to uphold
the laws of the nation and the laws of the State of Georgia.  He said his understanding was that the
regulation concerning fluoride was mandated, meaning it was against the law.  He said until the law
changed, as an elected official, he would not go against having fluoride in the water supply.


The Board did not vote or give further direction in this matter.  Copies of the request, PowerPoint
presentation, and additional dais information, identified as “Attachment 15,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 10


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones said that during the last Board meeting when she spoke under Public Comment that she
was advised by County Administrator Steve Rapson that she should take her recommendations to the Parks and
Recreation Commission regarding facilities at Kenwood Park.  She said she gave that presentation at the last Parks
and Recreation Commission and gave them information for Community Development Block Grant funds.  She also
told the Parks and Recreation Commission how senior citizens needed an aquatic center to maintain their health, and
that she was drawing up a petition to bring to the Board on this matter.  She said the Community Development Block
Grant funds are distributed through the Department of Community Affairs and the funds are provided for disabled and
elderly needs as well as for areas that have a low or moderate income status.  She told the Board that there is more
than $5 million available.  She stated that the Department of Community Affairs informed her that Fayette County has
never applied for those funds, so she asked the Recreation Commission to consider those funds as a possible
source.  She added that she received notification from Commissioner McCarty that he requested funding to be
included in the 2015 budget for funding Kenwood Park.  She asked if Commissioner McCarty could address this
matter since it was not brought up at the meeting.  She stated that an aquatic center could cost between $250,000.00
and $500,000.00, and the only dilemma presented to her by the Recreation Commission was the liability and ongoing
cost.  She stated that with money from the Department of Community Development, those funds could take care of
the maintenance costs.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Region Six Mental Health Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that a Selection
Committee needed to be established for one position on the Region Six Mental Health Board.  Chairman Brown and
Commissioner Oddo were appointed as the Selection Committee for the Region Six Mental Health Board.


GEMA/FEMA Reimbursement: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that the County had
received its GEMA/FEMA Reimbursement for an amount just more than $116,000.00.  He said the reimbursement
was roughly 87.5% of the cost associated with the ice and snow storms in January and February 2014.  He thanked
Captain Pete Nelms and the department heads that were instrumental in obtaining the reimbursement.


First Lady Sandra Deal: County Administrator Steve Rapson told the Board that Georgia’s First Lady, Sandra Deal,
went to Juvenile Court earlier in the day and was given a presentation.  He stated that the Criminal Justice
Coordinating Council was present and that the council provides grants to Fayette County.


Revision of Ordinances and Policies Removing Prohibitions on Political Activities: County Administrator Steve
Rapson informed the Board that he has asked County Attorney Dennis Davenport to edit the existing ordinances to
eliminate prohibitions on political activities.  He stated that he made the request based on feedback he had received
from the Board members.  He explained that this work would be brought to the Board as an amendment to the
ordinance


County Administrator Signed the District Attorney’s Affidavit:  County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that
the Board had approved an affidavit with Consent Agenda #7 from the Sheriff’s Office that is for reimbursement for
federal funding that the Sheriff’s Office receives.  He added that he had signed the affidavit for the District Attorney’s
Office since that affidavit is always signed by the County Administrator.


Potential Rescheduling of the September 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Time: County
Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the Firefighter’s Silent Hero Award Ceremony would begin at 6:30 p.m. on
Thursday, September 11, 2014.  He pointed out that this event would conflict with a regularly scheduled Board of







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 11


Commissioners meeting, and he stated that he would send an email to the Board in the coming days to determine if
the Board would want to reschedule the September 11, 2014 meeting to begin at 2:00 p.m. instead of the typical 7:00
p.m. meeting hour.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Executive Session Notification: County Administrator Dennis Davenport notified the Board that he had several
items for consideration in Executive Session.  Those items included four involving pending litigation, one involving
threatened litigation, and to consider the July 10, 2014 and July 24, 2014 Executive Session Minutes.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked the interns for their outstanding work.  He said they took on
controversial topics and they stuck with it.  He said it was a joy to see the interns prosper and he hoped they would
have great success in their future endeavors.  He said they were young, but as they get older they will discover it is
not so easy to break the law.  He stated that as long as it is a law that fluoride is placed in the water then it is going to
be in the water.  He said he felt bad for those it may affect medically and he did not have answers for that. 


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio asked for the people to help save the Hopeful Church since it is
important to the county.  He thought the citizens could come out and raise the funds to save the structure.  He said it
was odd that most people are drinking bottled water and he wondered how much fluoride people were taking in.  He
said there may be bottled water companies that add fluoride to their water, but most of the companies that he was
aware of did not add fluoride to their water.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty stated that if a person went to Wal-Mart and bought nursery
distilled water it would contain fluoride.  He stated that the fluoride has been taken out of that water, however, since it
has been discovered how damaging fluoride is to babies.  He pointed out that Gerber has taken fluoride out of its
products, and that Colgate is producing toothpaste without fluoride.  He questioned why these companies were
removing fluoride if it was not dangerous.  He further commented that the bag that contains fluoride pictures skull and
crossbones, and that being put into the county’s water system.  He stated that he is against having fluoride in the
water system and he told how fluoride damaged his teeth as a young child.  He concluded that if a person wants
fluoride they can get it through toothpaste and mouth wash.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo thanked the audience for coming to the meeting and staying.  He echoed
Commissioner Ognio’s request to help preserve the church.  He said everyone was going for the same goal, but they
may be taking a different path.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown stated that one of the options given for fluoride was for a legal remedy, and he
stressed they were not suggesting anything illegal.  He commented on Hopeful Church saying there were only certain
instances when a historical structure could be preserved.  Chairman Brown also responded to Ms. Alice Jones’ public
comments.  Chairman Brown pointed out that Mr. David Brill, who had been in a bad motorcycle accident several
months ago, was in the audience.  He said he was glad to see Mr. Brill back to the meetings and wished him well.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Four Items of Pending Litigation, One Item of Threatened Litigation, One Item of Real Estate, and Review of
the July 10 and July 24, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to recess into Executive
Session.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.


Chairman Brown added that he had one item of Real Estate to discuss in Executive Session.







Minutes
August 14, 2014
Page Number 12


Chairman Brown amended his motion to include one item of Real Estate along with four items of Pending Litigation,
one item of Threatened Litigation, and review of the July 10 and 24, 2014 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner
Oddo seconded the amended motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:52 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 10:47 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of the Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to
return to Official Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session
Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 16,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the July 10, 2014 and July 24, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve
the July 10, 2014 and July 24, 2014 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Approval of Claim Settlement with Mr. Robert Haydon:  Chairman Brown moved to approve a claim settlement for
Mr. Robert Haydon, based on an Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) claim, in the amount of
$20,000.00, as a general release, to reinstate Mr. Haydon as a Lieutenant, with a non-admission of liability on behalf
of the County, and a confidentiality clause regarding Mr. Haydon.  Commissioners Oddo and McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to Adjourn the August 14, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The August 14, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 10:47 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28th day of August 2014.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
Special Called Meeting


August 19, 2014


 3:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on August 19, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk


Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the Tuesday, August 19, 2014 Board of Commissioners- Special Called Meeting to order at


3:02 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as written.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty seconded the motion. 


No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Chairman turned the floor over to County Attorney Dennis Davenport.  Mr. Davenport briefly explained to the


Board what he intended to convey in this meeting.


1. Discussion of Parliamentary Procedures– Making the Meeting Work.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board for approximately thirty-three minutes on the Fayette


County Code, Chapter 2, Articles 1-6- Administration and he answered questions from the Board.  Mr.


Davenport also suggested several changes that could be made to the County Code.  He focused specific


attention on following sections:


A) Section 2-49(g)- Chair or presiding officer affidavit



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #13-b







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
August 19, 2014
Page Number 2


B) Section 2-51(a)- Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum and no action shall be taken by


the board without the concurring vote of at least three members of the board. Mr. Davenport


compared this Section2-51(a) with Section 2-49©) and spoke about how these sections conflict


with each other.


C) Section 2-55. Parliamentarian.


D) Section 2-56. Rules of Order.  Mr. Davenport suggested that it would be a good idea to have a textual


reference to default to should a scenario arise that is not addressed in the County Code.


E) Section 2-56 (b)- Motions; general requirement.  Mr. Davenport informed the Board that motions require


action, and that a motion to “consider” an item is not a proper motion.


F) Section 2-56(b)(3)- Withdrawal.


G) Section 2-56(b)(4)- Tabling.


H) Section 2-56(6)(a)- A commissioner in favor of a motion shall say “aye” while holding up his right hand.


I) Section 2-56(d)- Special motions.  Call the question.


J) Sections 2-56 (e) and (f)- Point of order and Out of order.


K) Section 2-56(h)- Public Discussion.


L) Section 2-60. Order of business.


M) Section 2-63. Decorum.


N) Section 2-64. Abstentions.  Mr. Davenport explained the differences between abstentions and recusals.


The Board did not vote upon or give direction on this matter.  A copy of the supporting material, identified


as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Discussion concerning the Zoning Board of Appeals and its role in Fayette County.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board for approximately seven minutes on the Fayette


County Code, Subpart B- Land Development and Use, Chapter 110- Zoning, Article VII. Zoning Board of


Appeals.  He answered questions from the Board during this explanation of this portion of the Fayette


County Code of Ordinances.  He focused specific attention to the following sections:  


A) Section 9-5(B)(1-7)- Request for a Variance.


B) Section 9-5(A)(1-3)- Appeals from Actions from the Zoning Administrator.


The Board did not vote upon or give direction on this matter.  A copy of the supporting material, identified


as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
August 19, 2014
Page Number 3


3. Discussion about the Planning Commission– Makes Recommendations for Rezonings (Focus on
Rezonings.)


County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board for approximately six minutes on the Fayette County


Code, Chapter 110- Zoning, Article X. Planning Commission.  Mr. Davenport answered questions from the


Board about this portion of the County Code.  He spoke about the differences and correlation between the


Land Use Plan and the Zoning Map.  He also spoke about “spot zoning” and “contract zoning.”  Mr.


Davenport focused specific attention to the following section:  Section 11-11- Standards for Map


Amendment (Rezoning) Evaluation.


The Board did not vote upon or give direction on this matter.  A copy of the supporting material, identified


as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Discussion on the Role of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners in Rezonings.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport spoke about for approximately twenty-two minutes about the differences


between the roles of the Zoning Board of Appeals and the Planning Commission in regards to rezoning


matters, and he spoke about the procedure it takes to amend Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance


document as opposed to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.  He explained the differences involved


with Public Hearings in general compared to Public Hearings involving rezoning matters.  Mr. Davenport


answered questions from the Board.  He focused on the following specific sections of the Fayette County


Code, Chapter 110- Zoning, Article. Planning Commission:


A) Section 11-3.(B) Conduct of Hearing.  


B) Section 11-8. Planning Commission Recommendation.


C) Section 11-10. Conditional Approval.


D) Section 11-13. Zoning Reversion.


Mr. Davenport spoke about the issues of “spot zoning” and “contract zoning” with the Board and told of


problems associated with those types of zonings. 


The Board did not vote upon or give direction on this matter.


5. Concluding Remarks.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport spoke about the differences between ordinances versus policies.  He


explained that ordinances always trump policies, and once an ordinance has been amended the policy


must be changed.  He reiterated that if an ordinance butts against policy that the ordinance will win.


Mr. Davenport asked the Board for liberty to look into the areas of the code that he brought up and that he


thought was problematic, and to come to the Board at a future date with changed language.  The Board


agreed to his request.  The Board did not vote on this matter.  Copies of the sample ordinance and policy,


identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
August 19, 2014
Page Number 4


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the August 19, 2014 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting. 


Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The August 19, 2014 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting was adjourned at 4:17 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 28th day of August 2014.


___________________________________


       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


August 28, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner Randy Ognio
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of September 2014 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month
in Fayette County.


2. Proclamation of September 2014 as Kappa Kappa Iota Month in Fayette
County.


3. Proclamation of September 2014 as National Preparedness Month in
Fayette County.


4. Proclamation of August 29, 2014 as Sigvaris Day in Fayette County.


5. Recognition of Fayette County 4-H members and their many
accomplishments during the past year.


6. Recognition of the Peachtree City Convention and Visitors Bureau for their
efforts in recruiting volunteers for the Divas Half Marathon and 5K in
Atlanta-Peachtree City.


7. Proclamation honoring Bob and Bernadette Carty who are celebrating their
50th Wedding Anniversary.


PUBLIC HEARING:


8. Consideration of Petition T-019-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A,
Agent, request for a reduction of the requirements of Section 110-150.
Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers to develop a
185-foot Monopole Telecommunication Tower by reducing the 1,000 foot
setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet.


9. Consideration of Petition No. 1235-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass
Consulting, Inc., Agent, request to rezone 10.56 acres from A-R to R-45,
with said property being located in Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and
fronting on South Jeff Davis Road.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 28, 2014
Page Number 2


10. Consideration of Petition No. RP-052-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent,
request to add six (6) lots to the Minor Subdivision Plat for Max Fuller, with said property being located in
Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Road.


11. Consideration of Petition No. 1237-14, Kathy S. James, Owner, and Randy Boyd, Agent, request to rezone
1.05 acres from A-R to R-45 for a Single-Family Residential lot, with said property being located in Land Lot
17 of the 9th District and fronting on State Route 92 North.


CONSENT AGENDA:


12. Approval of staff’s request to adopt the Agreement on Governance of the Fayette County Development
Authority.


13. Approval of the August 14, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the August 19, 2014 Board
of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of Resolution 2014-18 adopting the 2014 Property Tax Millage Rates. 


15. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to repeal Ordinance 2014-09 and to adopt Ordinance 2014-12,
amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia, and in so doing deleting Chapter 13 in its
entirety and incorporating Article VI.- Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals, and Flea Markets into
Chapter 8- Businesses.


16. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt the 2014-2015 Fee Schedule pertaining to Pawnshops,
Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Markets.


17. Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Bartlett Fiber, Incorporated, in the
amount of $138,056, for the installation of 7.2 miles of fiber optic cabling that would provide future
data/voice connectivity to the E911 Operations Center, the Emergency Operations Center, Fire Station #7,
and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant.


18. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette
County, the City of Fairburn, the City of Peachtree City, and the Town of Tyrone to create the 74 Gateway
Coalition, develop and support initiatives of common interest, to provide updates and information related to
public/private funding, and to cultivate new and existing relationships with local stakeholders.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:







Agenda
August 28, 2014
Page Number 3


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #18


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County, the City of Fairburn, the 


City of Peachtree City, and the Town of Tyrone to create the 74 Gateway Coalition, develop and support initiatives of common interest, to 


provide updates and information related to public/private funding, and to cultivate new and existing relationships with local stakeholders.


Fayette County, along with the cities of Fairburn and Peachtree City, and the Town of Tyrone share a common interest in fostering smart 


investment and revitalization of the Georgia State Route 74 Corridor in Fulton and Fayette Counties.  Together, they are interested in 


bringing their collective resources together in order to accomplish controlled, quality development along the SR 74 Corridor communities 


through coordinated cooperation. Each party shares a common interest in creating enhancement of the SR 74 Corridor to maintain traffic 


flow, attract future investment, create new jobs, increase property values and increase services and opportunities available to the 


members of the SR 74 Corridor community.  The counties have expressed their intent to collaborate in order to encourage and/or 


facilitate enhancement of the SR 74 Corridor.  


 


This Intergovernmental Agreement will (1) create the 74 Gateway Coalition; (2) develop and support initiatives of common interest and 


explore opportunities for collaboration as it relates to the potential development of the SR 74 Corridor as a member of the 74 Gateway 


Coalition; (3) provide updates and information related to public and/or private funding that may be utilized to support the SR 74 Corridor; 


and (4) further cultivate new and existing relationships with local stakeholders. 


 


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County, the City of Fairburn, the 


City of Peachtree City, and the Town of Tyrone in order to create the 74 Gateway Coalition, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the Intergovernmental Agreement provided that all other jurisdictions sign the agreement in advance and that there are no substantial or 


material changes to the agreement.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This Intergovernmental Agreement serves as another example of Fayette County working with its neighboring jurisdiction and reaching 


across county line to work with the City of Fairburn for the betterment of all who drive on, live near, and work alongside State Route 74. 


Thursday, August 28, 2014 New Business







 


 


 


INTERGOVENMENTAL AGREEMENT 


 


THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this 11th day of 


August, 2014, by and between the respective governing authorities of City of 


Fairburn, Fayette County, Town of Tyrone and City of Peachtree City, Georgia.  


WHEREAS, the undersigned parties share a common interest in fostering 


smart investment and revitalization of the Georgia State Route 74 Corridor  in 


Fulton and Fayette County, Georgia (“SR 74 Corridor”); and 


WHEREAS, the undersigned parties are interested in bringing their 


collective resources together in order to accomplish controlled, quality 


development along the SR 74 Corridor communities through coordinated 


cooperation; and 


 WHEREAS, the undersigned parties share a common interest in creating 


enhancement of the SR 74 Corridor to maintain traffic flow, attract future 


investment, create new jobs, increase property values and increase services and 


opportunities available to the members of the SR 74 Corridor community; and 


 WHEREAS, the parties have expressed their intent to collaborate in order to 


encourage and/or facilitate enhancement of the SR 74 Corridor.  


 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the undertakings 


hereinafter set forth, the undersigned parties, each acting by and through their duly 


authorized officers, covenant and agree as follows: 







 


 


The undersigned parties hereto agree to (1) create the 74 Gateway Coalition; (2) 


develop and support initiatives of common interest and explore opportunities for 


collaboration as it relates to the potential development of the SR 74 Corridor as a 


member of the 74 Gateway Coalition; (3) provide updates and information related 


to public and/or private funding that may be utilized to support the SR 74 Corridor; 


and (4) further cultivate new and existing relationships with local stakeholders 


throughout the SR 74 Corridor Communities. 


IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, each of the undersigned parties, by and through 


their respective duly authorized representatives, executed this Cooperation 


Agreement on and as of the date first above written. 


 


Attest: Atlanta Regional Commission  
 


 


 


 


 


______________________ _________________________________ 


Secretary        Doug Hooker, Executive Director 


 


Approved as to legal form: 
 


 


 


________________________ 


Secretary 


 


[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 


  


 







 


 


 


 


_________________________   ________________________ 


Mario Avery, Mayor    Steve Brown, Chairman  


City of Fairburn     Fayette County  


 


_________________________   ________________________ 


Vanessa Fleisch, Mayor    Eric Dial, Mayor  


City of Peachtree City    Town of Tyrone  


 


 


 





		Administration- State Route 74 IGA Agenda Request File

		Administration- State Route 74 IGA Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #16


Code Enforcement Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt the 2014-2015 Fee Schedule pertaining to Pawnshops, Dealers in Precious Metals and 


Gems, and Flea Markets.


This request is associated with staff's previous request to repeal Ordinance 2014-09 and to adopt Ordinance 2014-14 (New Business 


#15).   


 


If the Board adopts Ordinance 2014-12, then the proposed 2014-2015 Fee Schedule will also need to be adopted.  If the Board does not 


adopt Ordinance 2014-12, then there is not a need to approve this Fee Schedule.


Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt the 2014-2015 Fee Schedule pertaining to Pawnshops, Dealers in Precious Metals and 


Gems, and Flea Markets.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This item is tied to New Business #15 and will provide a fee schedule for Ordinance 2014-12 if adopted.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 New Business







 
 


2014-2015 FEE SCHEDULE  


PAWNSHOPS 


DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METAL AND GEMS 


FLEA MARKETS 


 


 
Pawnshops 


 


Application fee             75.00 


Fingerprint     44.25 ea 


Regulatory license fee        2000.00   


Employee permit fee   30.00 


 


Dealers in precious metals and gems 


 


Application fee     75.00 


Fingerprint     44.25 ea 


Regulatory license fee         1000.00 


Employee permit fee   30.00 


 


Flea Markets 


 


Application fee    75.00 


Fingerprint – licensee only  44.25 ea 


Regulatory license fee            500.00 


 


Vendor/Booth application & permit   75.00 


Short term vendor/booth application & permit 45.00 


 


Transfer fees same as above where applicable. 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 





		Code Enforcement- Fee Schedule Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Fee Schedule Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #15


Code Enforcement Kathy Hobbs / Dennis Davenport


Consideration of staff's recommendation to repeal Ordinance 2014-09 and to adopt Ordinance 2014-12, amending the Code of 


Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia,  and in so doing deleting Chapter 13 in its entirety and incorporating Article VI.- Pawnbrokers, 


Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators into Chapter 8- Businesses.


On May 8, 2014, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 2014-09 pertaining to Chapter 13 of the Fayette 


County Code of Ordinances concerning Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators. 


 


Subsequent review by staff concluded revisions were needed to assure an across the board implementation and cohesiveness in order to 


enforce the ordinance.  


 


The proposed Ordinance 2014-12  will repeal Ordinance 2014-09 in its entirety and will incorporate Article VI.- Pawnbrokers, Dealers in 


Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators into Chapter 6- Businesses. 


 


If Ordinance 2014-12 is adopted, then a Fee Schedule will also have to be adopted.  The Fee Schedule is listed as a separate Agenda 


Item (New Business #16) for the Board's consideration.


Approval of staff's recommendation to repeal Ordinance 2014-09 and to adopt Ordinance 2014-12, amending the Code of Ordinances for 


Fayette County, Georgia,  and in so doing deleting Chapter 13 in its entirety and incorporating Article VI.- Pawnbrokers, Dealers in 


Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators into Chapter 8- Businesses.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is associated with New Business #16.  If this request is approved, then a fee schedule will also have to be adopted.  The 


proposed fee schedule is provided on the Agenda as New Business #16.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 New Business







ORDINANCE 2014-12 


 


PAWNSHOP ORDINANCE 


 


RED-LINED VERSION 







1 


 


CHAPTER 138.   PAWNBROKERS, DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS 


AND FLEA MARKET OPERATORSBUSINESSES. 


 


ARTICLE VI.  PAWNBROKERS, DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS AND 


FLEA MARKET OPERATORS. 


 


ARTICLE DIVISION 1I.   PAWNBROKERSIN GENERAL. 


 


Sec. 13-18-201. Findings and intent. 


 


 This ordinance is adopted to address the interest of public safety, health and the welfare 


of the community and to aid and assist in the recovery of stolen property, and to aid and assist 


local law enforcement in fulfilling their public safety functions. 


 


Secs. 8-202 through 8-220. RESERVED. 


 


DIVISION 2.   PAWNBROKERS. 


 


Sec. 13-28-221. Definitions. 


 


 The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this ArticleDivision, shall have 


the meanings ascribed to them in this section or shall have the same meaning as set forth in the 


Official Code of Georgia Annotated, § 44-12-130, should those definitions differ: 


 


 Employee shall mean any person who works in a pawnshop, whether on a part-time or 


full-time basis, regardless of whether remuneration is received or not. 


 


 Licensee shall mean a person holding a license issued by Fayette County to engage in the 


business of being a pawnbroker and/or to operate a pawnshop. 


 


 Month shall mean that period of time from one date in a calendar month to the 


corresponding date in the following calendar month, but if there is no such corresponding date, 


then the last day of such following month. 


 


 Pawnbroker shall mean any person engaged in whole or in part in the business of lending 


money on the security of pledged goods, or in the business of purchasing tangible personal 


property on the condition that it may be redeemed or repurchased by the seller for a fixed price 


within a fixed period of time, or in the business of purchasing tangible personal property from 


persons or sources other than manufacturers or licensed dealers as a part of or in conjunction 


with the business activities described in this paragraph. 


 


 Pawnshop shall mean any place of business operated by a pawnbroker where pawn 


transactions take place. 


 


Formatted: Centered


Formatted: Font: Bold







2 


 


 Pawn transaction shall mean any loan on the security of pledged goods or any purchase 


of pledged goods on the condition that the pledged goods may be redeemed or repurchased by 


the pledger or seller for a fixed price within a fixed period of time. 


 


 Person shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, trust, 


association, or any other legal entity however organized. 


 


 Pledged goods shall mean tangible personal property, including, without limitation, all 


types of motor vehicles or any motor vehicle certificate of title, which property is purchased by, 


deposited with, or otherwise actually delivered into the possession of a pawnbroker in connection 


with a pawn transaction.  However, for purposes of this ArticleDivision, possession of any motor 


vehicle certificate of title which has come into the possession of a pawnbroker through a pawn 


transaction made in accordance with law shall be conclusively deemed to be possession of the 


motor vehicle, and the pawnbroker shall retain physical possession of the motor vehicle 


certificate of title for the entire length of the pawn transaction but shall not be required in any 


way to retain physical possession of the motor vehicle at any time.  The term “pledged goods” 


shall not include choses in action, securities, or printed evidences of indebtedness. 


 


Sec. 13-3. Employees. 


 


 No person shall be an employee of a pawnshop in any capacity until such person has been 


fingerprinted by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department and has been issued an annual permit 


authorizing such person to be employed by a pawnshop.  It shall be the duty of the pawnbroker 


to assure that there is compliance with the provisions of this section. 


 


Sec. 13-48-222. General policies and purposes. 


 


(a) Pawnbrokers may operate only after the issuance of a license for such operation by the 


County and only in the manner permitted by such license.  Pawn transactions may only occur 


through a licensee who complies with the rules and regulations of this Article Division and with 


the licensing, regulatory and revenue requirements of the State of Georgia. 


 


(b) All licenses are a mere grant or privilege subject to all terms and conditions imposed by 


this ordinance and State law and subject to being revoked by the County. 


 


(c) Each licensee of the County shall display the license issued under this Article Division 


prominently at all times at the outlet for which the license is issued.  A separate license must be 


issued for each outlet of sale and a separate application must be made for each outlet. 


 


Sec. 8-223. Location of businesses. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Division shall be located in strict compliance with the 


Fayette County Zoning Ordinance and at a location with an identifiable street address, which 


shall be stated on the license or renewal application along with other required information.  No 


business licensed under this Division shall change its address without giving advance notice to 


the County and receiving an approval of the change, such approval to be granted if the new 







3 


 


location complies with this Division and the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  No business 


licensed under this Division shall be operated in or from a motel or hotel. 


 


Sec. 13-58-224. Qualifications for issuance of license. 


 


Any person who desires to obtain a license to engage in the business of a being a 


pawnbroker and/or for the operation of a pawnshop must meet the minimum qualifications set 


forth in this section.  If the applicant is a partnership, each partner must meet the qualifications of 


any individual license and must make sworn statements of these qualifications as part of the 


applications process.  If the applicant is a corporation, the majority stockholder and each 


principle officer of the corporation must meet the qualifications as part of the applications 


process. 


 


(a) No owner, employee, pawnbroker or any person connected with a pawnshop for which a 


license or permit is sought shall have been convicted of a crime involving "moral turpitude" or 


shall have been convicted of any crime involving felony theft, burglary, robbery, or a violation of 


the "Family Violence Act."or entered a plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) 


years prior to the date of the application and/or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo 


contendere to any misdemeanor involving crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, 


assault, battery, any violation of the “Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs within two (2) years 


prior to the date of the application. 


 


(b) No license shall be granted to an applicant who is under the age of eighteen (18) years of 


age. 


 


(c) All persons filing an application for a pawnshop license will be required to complete a 


waiver in order for the applicant’s criminal history to be obtained. 


 


(d) No license shall be granted where the applicant has had any pawnshop license issued by 


any county, municipality, or other governmental subdivision suspended or revoked. 


 


(e) No license shall be granted for a location that is not in compliance with any federal, state, 


or local regulation including, but not limited to, a state certificate of occupancy or a Fayette 


County certificate of occupancy. 


 


(f) No license shall be issued where the applicant has supplied false information in the 


license application or where any required fee has not been paid by such applicant, including any 


fees or assessments owed to other departments of the County. 


 


(g) No license shall be issued unless the applicant and each individual licensee is and 


continues to be a resident of the State of Georgia.  Corporations must either be incorporated in 


the State or Georgia or must have registered to do business in this State, and only the applying 


general manager or applying corporate officer must meet the residency requirements. 


 


Sec. 8-225. Employee permit required. 


 







4 


 


(a) No person shall be an employee of a pawnshop in any capacity until such person has been 


authorized by Code Enforcement to be employed by a pawnshop and issued an employee’s 


identification badge.  This identification bade must be worn at all times while working.  It shall 


be the duty of the pawnbroker to ensure that there is compliance with the provisions of this 


section. 


 


(b) No employee permit shall be issued to any person who has been convicted of or entered a 


plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) years prior to the date of the application 


and/or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to any misdemeanor involving 


crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, assault, battery, any violation of the 


“Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs within two (2) years prior to the date of the application. 


 


Sec. 13-68-226. Annual permitlicense. 


 


Before operating a pawnshop or becoming an employee of a pawnshop, any person must 


first file an application with Fayette County Code Enforcement for a permit license to operate or 


be employed in the pawnshop, pursuant to the following: 


 


(a) The application shall be made on an annual basis; 


 


(b) No permit license shall be issued until a fee in an amount established by action of the 


County, a copy of which is on file with Code Enforcement, is paid to the County; 


 


(c) The application shall state the physical address of the pawnshop; 


 


(d) The application shall contain the full name, street address, mailing address, phone 


number, facsimile number, e-mail address, Social Security number, and date of birth and of any 


employee, owner, or pawnbroker; 


 


(e) Code Enforcement or any other officer of the County designated by the County 


Administrator shall investigate each applicant for such license and shall make a report to the 


Board of CommissionersCounty Administrator as to whether such applicant is a person of good 


character and as to whether such applicant has been convicted of a criminal offense as described 


in subsection (a) of Section 13-58-224 of this ArticleDivision. 


 


(f) Any license holder subject to this ordinance shall apply for renewal of any existing 


license and shall pay the annual license fee no later than November 1st of each calendar year in 


which it does business. 


 


Sec. 13-78-227. Application for license. 


 


(a) All applications required in Section 13-68-226 of this Article Division shall be in writing 


and on forms provided by Code Enforcement. 


 


(b) All applications shall be completed by the applicant and sworn to and signed by the 


applicant in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths. 







5 


 


 


(c) All applicants shall furnish all data, information and records requested of them, and 


failure to furnish such data, information, and records within thirty (30) days from the date of 


such request shall automatically serve as grounds to deny the application.  An applicant, by filing 


an application, agrees to produce for questioning any person(s) who are considered relevant to 


the ascertainment of facts relative to such license, as may be requested by Code Enforcement, the 


Fayette County Sheriff’s Department, or other official designated by the County Administrator.  


The failure to produce such persons within thirty (30) days after being requested to do so may 


result in denial of the application. 


 


(d) Each application shall be accompanied by an affidavit of each person whose name 


appears on the application stating that said person has not been convicted or entered a plea of 


nolo contendere to any of the crimes listed in Section 8-224(a) of this Division within the time 


periods specified in said Section. 


 


(e) Each application shall be accompanied by a deed showing the applicant to be the owner 


of the premises for which the license is sought or a copy of a lease showing any interest the 


owner of the premises has in the business for which the license is sought. 


 


(fd) No pawnshop shall be operated at the same location or in the same premises with the 


sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new goods, wares, or merchandise.  No 


license for the sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new goods, wares, or 


merchandise shall be issued for a location licensed as a pawnshop. 


 


(ge) Each applicant shall certify on the application that they have read this Article Division 


and, if the license is granted, each licensee shall maintain a copy of this Article Division on the 


premises. 


 


(hf) Upon receipt of an application, as well as all accompanying documents and required 


investigative and license fees, Code Enforcement will begin a criminal investigation of the 


applicant and prepare a written criminal investigation report detailing all information relating to 


fingerprinting, criminal history, arrest data, and other matters pertinent to law enforcement.  


Upon completion of the criminal investigation report, Code Enforcement shall assemble the 


tendered application forms and accompanying documents relating to the investigation and 


processing of the application and deliver such documents to the County Administrator or his or 


her designee.  If the criminal investigation report shows that the applicant meets the requirements 


set by this Article and all other requirements of this Article are satisfied, then the County 


Administrator or his or her designee shall schedule the application for hearing at the next 


regularly scheduled public hearing calendar before the Board of Commissioners and shall so 


inform the applicant of this fact before such meeting.  If the criminal investigation report shows 


that the applicant fails to meet the requirements set by this ArticleDivision, or if the applicant 


fails to meet all other requirements outlined by this ArticleDivision, then the County 


Administrator or his or her designee shall inform the applicant, in writing, that the application 


has been denied, and shall set forth in reasonable detail the reasons for the denial and shall notify 


the applicant of his or her right to appeal.  Such appeal shall be before the Board of 


Commissioners in accordance with Section 13-178-240 of this ArticleDivision.  If an applicant 







6 


 


desires to appeal a denial, the applicant must file a written request for an appeal with the County 


Administrator within ten (10) business days of the date of the written notice informing the 


applicant of the denial of the license. 


 


(ig) Any application that the County Administrator or his or her designee determines to 


satisfy all the requirements outlined in this ArticleDivision, including character requirements as 


contained in the criminal investigation report of Code Enforcement, shall be scheduled for 


review at the next regularly scheduled public meeting of the Board of Commissionersapproved.  


At that meeting, the applicant and any person opposed to such application has the right to present 


to the Board of Commissioners any information that the Board of Commissioners determines is 


relevant to the licensing decision.  In making its determination on whether to approve or deny the 


application, the Board of Commissioners shall look to the qualifications set forth in this Article 


and consider the public interest and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County.  The Board of 


Commissioners shall have the discretion to grant or deny the application based on the 


information presented.  A decision by the Board of Commissioners shall be made within thirty 


(30) days from the date of the public hearing, unless the decision is postponed for purposes of 


obtaining additional information deemed necessary for consideration of the application.  Notice 


of the decision by the Board of Commissioners shall be mailed to the applicant.  If the 


application is denied, such written notification shall set forth in reasonable detail the reasons for 


the denial and shall notify the applicant of his or her right to appeal.  Such appeal shall be taken 


solely in accord with Section 13-17 of this Article. 


 


(jh) In all instances in which an application is denied, the applicant may not reapply for the 


same type of license for at least one (1) year from the date of denial. 


 


(ki) Upon the issuance of a license, the licensee must have and continuously maintain in the 


County a registered agent upon whom any process, notice, or demand required or permitted by 


law or under this Article Division may be served.  This person must be an individual and must be 


a resident of the County.  The licensee shall submit the name of such agent, along with the 


written consent of such agent, to Code Enforcement.  The identity of the agent may also be 


submitted contemporaneous to filing the license application. 


 


(lj) Upon approval by the Board of Commissioners of the application for a license, Code 


Enforcement shall issue a license in accordance with the approved application.  If the applicant is 


an individual, the license shall be issued in the name of the individual.  If the application is a 


corporation, the license shall be issued in the name of the corporation and in the name of the 


majority stockholder or a principal officer of the corporation.  If the application is a partnership, 


the license shall be issued in the name of the partnership and in the name of one of the partners.  


All licenses issued shall be granted for the full calendar year or for the number of months 


remaining in the calendar year.  Any applicant granted a license before July 1 shall pay the full 


license fee without proration.  License fees for licenses granted on or after July 1 shall be one-


half the annual license fee.  License fees are not refundable once the license is granted by the 


County. 


 


Sec. 13-88-228. Commencement and forfeiture. 


 







7 


 


(a) All holders of licenses under this Article Division must, within six (6) months after the 


issuance of the license, open for business the establishment referred to in the license, unless such 


period is extended by the County Administrator or his or her designee.  Failure to open the 


licensed establishment as referred to in this subsection within the six-month period shall serve as 


an automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the license, and no refund of license fees shall be 


made to the license holder. 


 


(b) Any holders of a license under this Article Division who shall begin the operation of the 


business as authorized in the license, but who shall for a period of three (3) consecutive months 


thereafter cease to operate the business as authorized in the license, shall automatically forfeit his 


or her license, which license shall by virtue of such failure to operate be canceled without the 


necessity for any further action by the County Administrator or his or her designee or the Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-98-229. Renewals and transfersTransfers. 


 


(a) Any license holder subject to this ordinance shall apply for renewal of any existing 


license and shall pay the annual license fee no later than December 1 of each calendar year in 


which it does business. 


 


(b) No license granted for a pawnshop shall be transferable except upon application to Code 


Enforcement in the same form and manner, and subject to the same requirements with respect to 


the transferee as are applicable in an original application.  Any such license may be transferred 


only to another applicant doing the same business at the same place as the license holder to 


whom the license was originally issued.  When permission for transfer has been granted, the 


original licensee or transferee shall cause the license to be delivered to the County Administrator 


or his or her designee who shall record such transfer, and the transferee shall pay a fee as a 


condition precedent to engaging in operations under the license.  The fee for such transfer shall 


be established in a schedule of fees adopted by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-108-230. Disposal of articles. 


 


 Any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop who makes a loan on pledged goods, or 


buys pledged goods on the condition that the seller may repurchase said goods, shall hold said 


goods for at least thirty (30) days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or 


otherwise.  Non-pledged goods bought under this section shall be held for at least seven (7) 


calendar days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise. 


 


Sec. 13-118-231. Minors. 


 


 It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to receive goods in 


pawn, trade, purchase or sale from a person of less than 18 years of age. 


 


Sec. 13-128-232. Hours of operation. 


 







8 


 


 All holders of licenses under this division Division shall operate only between 89:00 a.m. 


and 9:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday. 


 


Sec. 13-138-233. Lost or stolen items. 


 


(a) It shall be the duty of every person operating a pawnshop or employed by a pawnshop to 


report to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department any article or goods sold or pawned to him or 


her if he or she shall have a reason to believe that the article or goods were stolen or lost when 


presented by the seller or customer. 


 


(b) With respect to any items which would normally have a serial number or other means of 


identification, if any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop becomes aware that such items 


have had the identification removed, defaced or destroyed, such fact shall be immediately 


reported to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


(c) If it is determined that an item bought, sold, traded or pawned by a seller or customer to 


the pawnbroker or his or her employee is the subject of any reported theft, then the surrender of 


said item to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall be done upon demand. 


 


Sec. 13-148-234. Suspension and revocation of license. 


 


 Immediate suspension, revocation, or forfeiture of a license issued by the Board of 


Commissioners shall occur only after notice and opportunity for a hearing before the Board of 


Commissioners consistent with the procedures set forth in Section 13-17this Division and only 


upon the following occurrences: 


 


(a) Any license issued under this Article Division for the operation of a pawnshop shall be 


immediately revoked in the case of bankruptcy, receivership or levy of legal process upon the 


licensed outlet or property therein. 


 


(b) Except as provided in Section 13-9this Division, any change in the ownership of any 


entity operating or owning a licensed outlet shall be grounds for revocation of the license by the 


Board of Commissioners. 


 


(c) A license shall be immediately suspended or revoked by the Board of Commissioners 


upon learning that a licensee furnished fraudulent or untruthful information in the application for 


a license, or omits information required in the application for a license, or fails to pay all fees, 


taxes, or other charges imposed under the provisions of this ArticleDivision. 


 


(d) The Board of Commissioners shall immediately suspend or revoke the license of any 


licensee who does not meet the qualifications set forth in this Article Division at any time such 


information becomes known to the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-158-235. Record of transactions. 


 







9 


 


(a) Every pawnbroker shall maintain a permanent electronic record of its pawn transactions 


in which an accurate description of all property pledged, traded or sold to the pawnshop can be 


transmitted to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department via an electronic automated reporting 


system, approved by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.  Each of these transactions shall 


contain an accurate description of all property pledged, traded or sold to the pawnshop and shall 


be made at the time of each transaction, provided that the following information is included: 


 


(1) The date and time of the purchase, pawn or sale of the property. 


 


(2) The full name, street address and telephone number of the customer making the 


pledge, trade or sale. 


 


(3) A description of the customer in terms of sex, race, date of birth, height and 


weight, as well as the driver's license number of the customer or some other 


identification card which contains a photograph of the customer. 


 


(4) A description of the pledged or purchased property by serial, model or other 


number, if available, and by any identifying marks (e.g., brand name, color, style, 


etc.). 


 


(5) The number of the receipt or pawn transaction issued for the property pawned or 


bought. 


 


(6) The price paid or the amount loaned. 


 


(7) The maturity date of the transaction, if a pawn. 


 


(8) A photograph of the customer and the item pawned or bought which will be taken 


with the electronic automated reporting system at the time of the transaction. 


 


(9) The signature of the customer. 


 


(10) The fingerprint of the customer as generated by the electronic automated system. 


 


(b) Every pawnshop shall enter each transaction as it occurs into the electronic automated 


reporting system or may elect to upload electronically via the internet a batch file of all 


transactions for each business day to the administrator of the electronic automated reporting 


system immediately at the conclusion of each business day.  The administrator of the electronic 


automated reporting system will electronically transmit all transactions to the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Department. 


 


(c) In the event that the electronic automated reporting system becomes temporarily or 


permanently disabled, pawnshops and pawnbrokers will be notified as soon as possible.  In this 


event, the pawnbrokers will be required to make records of transactions in paper form.  Such 


paper forms must include all information as enumerated in paragraph (a) of this Code Section.  


Pawnbrokers shall maintain a three-day supply of these paper forms. 







10 


 


 


(d) Any duly authorized law enforcement officer may, during the ordinary hours of business 


or any other reasonable time, inspect any pawnbroker's electronic records at the pawnbroker's 


place of business to ensure compliance with this section. 


 


(e) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall select and designate the required 


automated reporting system.  There will be a fee assessed to the pawnshop for each reported 


transaction; said fee shall be adopted by the Board of Commissioners and be set in a fee schedule 


of the county.  This fee will be invoiced to the pawnbroker and collected by the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Department, which may be a third party administrator of the automated reporting 


system. 


 


Sec. 8-236. Identification required. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Division shall, when receiving or purchasing goods, 


require a proper identification (e.g., driver’s license, military I.D. card, state approved I.D. card 


or company employee I.D. card) containing a picture showing positive identification of the 


person who is selling or trading, or such identification shall be verified. 


 


Sec. 8-237. Fingerprinting required. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Division shall require every person from whom it 


accepts goods to place the fingerprint of his or her right index finger (if right index finger is 


missing, the next finger in line will be used) on the copy of the purchase ticket which is to be 


sent to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


Sec. 8-238. Erasers, obliterations, write-overs and type-overs not allowed. 


 


 No person licensed under this Division shall erase, obliterate, type over, write over or in 


any way cause the original entry on the records required under this Division to become illegible.  


All purchase tickets filled out in error shall be sent to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department in 


their numbered order along with daily reports and shall have the word “VOID” typed or written 


across the front; such entry shall not be used to cause the original entry to be illegible.  If an error 


is made and the ticket is still to be used, then a single line shall be drawn through the incorrect 


entry.  This line shall not cause the original entry to be illegible and the correct information entry 


shall be made on the next available area. 


 


Sec. 13-168-239. Violations. 


 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to violate any of the 


provisions of this ArticleDivision, whether or not such person or employee is the holder of a 


current valid permit issued according to the terms of this ArticleDivision.  Further, any person 


failing to comply with any provision of this Article Division or other rules, ordinances and 


regulations as may be passed by the Board of Commissioners for conduct of the business of a 


pawnbroker, shall upon conviction, have the license to conduct such business revoked. 


 


Formatted: Font: Not Bold







11 


 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop to: 


 


(1) Make any false statement in an application for any permit provided for in this 


ArticleDivision. 


 


(2) Make any false entry in any record book, ledger or form required by the terms of 


this ArticleDivision. 


 


(3) Violate any criminal law of this State while acting in the course of business as a 


pawnbroker or employee of a pawnbroker. 


 


(c) Any person who violates a provision of this Article Division shall be guilty of a 


misdemeanor. 


 


Sec. 13-178-240. Appeal procedure. 


 


(a) Upon receipt of a timely appeal of an administrative denial, or upon alleged violation of 


those items in Section 13-148-234, the County Administrator or his or her designee shall 


schedule a hearing before the Board of Commissioners and provide written notice to the adverse 


party of the time, place and date of the scheduled hearing.  The County Administrator or his or 


her designee shall also state in the written notice the basis for the administrative denial or the 


violation or occurrence alleged that forms the basis for the denial or potential suspension or 


revocation.  After notice of hearing, matters scheduled for hearing may only be continued by 


agreement of the County Attorney and the adverse party and/or counsel for the adverse party. 


 


(b) The Board of Commissioners shall have the duty of conducting hearings concerning the 


denial, revocation, or suspension of a license.  The standard of proof on all issues in the hearing 


shall be a preponderance of the evidence and a determination will be made on the basis of the 


evidence presented at the hearing. 


 


(c) At the hearing, after presentation of the case against the adverse party, the adverse party 


will have an opportunity to present his or her case, to rebut the allegations made against him or 


her, and present whatever defenses he or she has.  The adverse party shall have the right to be 


represented by an attorney, at the expense of the adverse party, and to present evidence and 


cross-examine opposing witnesses.  An opportunity for rebuttal shall be provided. 


 


(d) At the conclusion of the hearing, the findings and conclusions of the Board of 


Commissioners shall be forwarded to the County Administrator or his or her designee and it shall 


be the duty of County Administrator or his or her designee to provide written notification via 


certified mail to the adverse party of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


(e) The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be final unless appealed to the 


Superior Court of Fayette County within thirty (30) days of receipt by the adverse party of the 


written notification of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-188-241 through 13-498-260. Reserved. 







12 


 


  







13 


 


ARTICLE IIDIVISION 3.   DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS. 


 


Sec. 13-508-261. Definitions. 


 


 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this ArticleDivision, shall have the 


meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 


meaning: 


 


 Dealer in precious metals and gems shall mean a person, as either owner or manager, 


whose business involves receiving through purchase or trade precious metals (such as gold, 


silver or platinum), jewelry, gems, precious or semiprecious stones, in any form, but not one who 


purchases from licensed wholesalers in the normal course of business. 


 


 Employee shall mean any person employed or allowed to perform duties, whether or not 


such person receives a salary, wages or other compensation or consideration, but not including 


the person covered on the license or renewal application. 


 


 Goods shall have its normal meaning, however it should be further construed in the 


broadest sense allowable and should include all forms of personal property. 


 


 Numismatic coins shall mean coins whose value as collectors’ item exceeds the value of 


the content of the precious metals in the coins. 


 


 Owner shall mean any person, partner or stockholder owning twenty-five (25) percent or 


more of a business. 


 


Sec. 13-518-262. License required. 


 


 Every person doing business in the unincorporated area of Fayette County as a dealer in 


precious metals or gems shall, prior to commencing business, make proper application for and 


receive the appropriate license. 


 


Sec. 8-263. General policies and purposes. 


 


(a) Dealers of precious metals and/or gems may operate only after the issuance of a license 


for such operation by the County and only in the manner permitted by such license.  Purchase 


transactions may only occur through a licensee who complies with the rules and regulations of 


this Division and with the licensing, regulatory and revenue requirements of the State of Georgia. 


 


(b) All licenses are a mere grant or privilege subject to all terms and conditions imposed by 


this ordinance and State law and subject to being revoked by the County. 


 


(c) Each licensee of the County shall display the license issued under this Division 


prominently at all times at the outlet for which the license is issued.  A separate license must be 


issued for each outlet of sale and a separate application must be made for each outlet. 


 







14 


 


Sec. 8-264. Qualifications for issuance of license. 


 


Any person who desires to obtain a license to engage in the business of a being a dealer 


in precious metals and/or gems must meet the minimum qualifications set forth in this section.  If 


the applicant is a partnership, each partner must meet the qualifications of any individual license 


and must make sworn statements of these qualifications as part of the applications process.  If the 


applicant is a corporation, the majority stockholder and each principle officer of the corporation 


must meet the qualifications as part of the applications process. 


 


(a) No owner, employee, dealer in precious metals and/or gems or any person connected with 


a such business for which a license or permit is sought shall have been convicted of or entered a 


plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) years prior to the date of the application 


and/or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to any misdemeanor involving 


crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, assault, battery, any violation of the 


“Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs within two (2) years prior to the date of the application. 


 


(b) No license shall be granted to an applicant who is under the age of eighteen (18) years of 


age. 


 


(c) All persons filing an application for a license to engage in the business of being a dealer 


in precious metals and/or gems will be required to complete a waiver in order for the applicant’s 


criminal history to be obtained. 


 


(d) No license shall be granted where the applicant has had any license to engage in the 


business of being a dealer in precious metals and/or gems issued by any county, municipality, or 


other governmental subdivision suspended or revoked. 


 


(e) No license shall be granted for a location that is not in compliance with any federal, state, 


or local regulation including, but not limited to, a state certificate of occupancy or a Fayette 


County certificate of occupancy. 


 


(f) No license shall be issued where the applicant has supplied false information in the 


license application or where any required fee has not been paid by such applicant, including any 


fees or assessments owed to other departments of the County. 


 


(g) No license shall be issued unless the applicant and each individual licensee is and 


continues to be a resident of the State of Georgia.  Corporations must either be incorporated in 


the State or Georgia or must have registered to do business in this State, and only the applying 


general manager or applying corporate officer must meet the residency requirements. 


 


 


Sec. 13-528-265. Exclusions and exceptions. 


 


 Businesses which limit the purchase of used valuables to the acceptance of trade-ins for 


credit for new goods or the dispensing of refunds in regard to valuables previously purchased 


from the business shall not be regulated or covered under this ArticleDivision. 


Formatted: Font: Bold







15 


 


Sec. 8-266. Annual license. 


 


Before becoming a dealer of precious metals and/or gems, any person must first file an 


application with Fayette County Code Enforcement for a license to operating as a dealer of 


precious metals and/or gems, pursuant to the following: 


 


(a) The application shall be made on an annual basis; 


 


(b) No license shall be issued until a fee in an amount established by action of the County, a 


copy of which is on file with Code Enforcement, is paid to the County; 


 


(c) The application shall state the physical address of the pawnshop; 


 


(d) The application shall contain the full name, street address, mailing address, phone 


number, facsimile number, e-mail address, Social Security number, and date of birth and of any 


employee, owner, or pawnbroker; 


 


(e) Code Enforcement or any other officer of the County designated by the County 


Administrator shall investigate each applicant for such license and shall make a report to the 


County Administrator as to whether such applicant is a person of good character and as to 


whether such applicant has been convicted of a criminal offense as described in subsection (a) of 


Section 8-264 of this Division. 


 


(f) Any license holder subject to this ordinance shall apply for renewal of any existing 


license and shall pay the annual license fee no later than November 1st of each calendar year in 


which it does business. 


 


 


Sec. 13-538-267. Application for permitlicense. 


 


  


(a) All applications required in Section 8-266 of this Division shall be in writing and on 


forms provided by Code Enforcement. 


 


(b) All applications shall be completed by the applicant and sworn to and signed by the 


applicant in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths. 


 


(c) All applicants shall furnish all data, information and records requested of them, and 


failure to furnish such data, information, and records within thirty (30) days from the date of 


such request shall automatically serve as grounds to deny the application.  An applicant, by filing 


an application, agrees to produce for questioning any person(s) who are considered relevant to 


the ascertainment of facts relative to such license, as may be requested by Code Enforcement, the 


Fayette County Sheriff’s Department, or other official designated by the County Administrator.  


The failure to produce such persons within thirty (30) days after being requested to do so may 


result in denial of the application. 


 







16 


 


(d) Each application shall be accompanied by an affidavit of each person whose name 


appears on the application stating that said person has not been convicted or entered a plea of 


nolo contendere to any of the crimes listed in Section 8-224(a) of this Division within the time 


periods specified in said Section. 


 


(e) Each application shall be accompanied by a deed showing the applicant to be the owner 


of the premises for which the license is sought or a copy of a lease showing any interest the 


owner of the premises has in the business for which the license is sought. 


 


(f) No dealer of precious metals and/or gems shall operate at the same location or in the 


same premises with the sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new goods, wares, 


or merchandise.  No license for the sale, dealing in, exchange, or handling of other than new 


goods, wares, or merchandise shall be issued for a location where a licensed dealer of precious 


metals and/or gems operates. 


 


(g) Each applicant shall certify on the application that they have read this Division and, if the 


license is granted, each licensee shall maintain a copy of this Division on the premises. 


 


(h) Upon receipt of an application, as well as all accompanying documents and required 


investigative and license fees, Code Enforcement will begin a criminal investigation of the 


applicant and prepare a written criminal investigation report detailing all information relating to 


fingerprinting, criminal history, arrest data, and other matters pertinent to law enforcement.  


Upon completion of the criminal investigation report, Code Enforcement shall assemble the 


tendered application forms and accompanying documents relating to the investigation and 


processing of the application and deliver such documents to the County Administrator or his or 


her designee.    If the criminal investigation report shows that the applicant fails to meet the 


requirements set by this Division, or if the applicant fails to meet all other requirements outlined 


by this Division, then the County Administrator or his or her designee shall inform the applicant, 


in writing, that the application has been denied, and shall set forth in reasonable detail the 


reasons for the denial and shall notify the applicant of his or her right to appeal.  Such appeal 


shall be before the Board of Commissioners in accordance with Section 8-289 of this Division.  


If an applicant desires to appeal a denial, the applicant must file a written request for an appeal 


with the County Administrator within ten (10) business days of the date of the written notice 


informing the applicant of the denial of the license. 


 


(i) Any application that the County Administrator or his or her designee determines to 


satisfy all the requirements outlined in this Division, including character requirements as 


contained in the criminal investigation report of Code Enforcement, shall be approved.   


 


(j) In all instances in which an application is denied, the applicant may not reapply for the 


same type of license for at least one (1) year from the date of denial. 


 


(k) Upon the issuance of a license, the licensee must have and continuously maintain in the 


County a registered agent upon whom any process, notice, or demand required or permitted by 


law or under this Division may be served.  This person must be an individual and must be a 


resident of the County.  The licensee shall submit the name of such agent, along with the written 







17 


 


consent of such agent, to Code Enforcement.  The identity of the agent may also be submitted 


contemporaneous to filing the license application. 


 


(l) Upon approval of the application for a license, Code Enforcement shall issue a license in 


accordance with the approved application.  If the applicant is an individual, the license shall be 


issued in the name of the individual.  If the application is a corporation, the license shall be 


issued in the name of the corporation and in the name of the majority stockholder or a principal 


officer of the corporation.  If the application is a partnership, the license shall be issued in the 


name of the partnership and in the name of one of the partners.  All licenses issued shall be 


granted for the full calendar year or for the number of months remaining in the calendar year.  


Any applicant granted a license before July 1 shall pay the full license fee without proration.  


License fees for licenses granted on or after July 1 shall be one-half the annual license fee.  


License fees are not refundable once the license is granted by the County.Applicants for a permit 


under this Article shall file with the County Administrator or his or her designee a written, sworn 


application on a form provided by the County, signed by the applicant if an individual, by all 


partners if a partnership or by the president and secretary if a corporation, and showing: 


 


(a) The name or names of the principals, agents, and employees of the applicant's business 


during the time that it will be operating in the County; the local address or addresses of such 


person or persons while engaged in such business; the permanent address or addresses of such 


person or persons; the capacity in which such person or persons will act (as proprietor, agent, 


employee or otherwise); the name and address of the person, firm or corporation for whose 


account the business will be carried on, if any; and if a corporation, the state of incorporation; 


 


(b) The fingerprints of the principals, agents and employees of the applicant's business, to be 


taken by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department and other evidence which establishes, to the 


satisfaction of the County, the good character of such persons to carry on the business; 


 


(c) The applicant's place or places of business in the County, approval of the zoning district 


at the place or places, and the length of time during which it is proposed that the business shall 


be conducted; 


 


(d) The place or places, other than the permanent place of business of the applicant, where 


the applicant within the six (6) months next preceding the date of the application conducted a 


similar business, stating the nature thereof and giving the post office and street address of any 


building or office in which such business was conducted; 


 


(e) A brief statement of the nature and the character of the advertising done or proposed to be 


done in order to attract customers; 


 


(f) Whether or not the person having the management or supervision of the applicant's 


business has been convicted of a crime, misdemeanor or violation of any County ordinance, the 


nature of such offense and punishment assessed therefore; 


 


(g) Credentials from the person, firm or corporation for which the applicant proposes to do 


business, authorizing the applicant to act as such representative; and 







18 


 


 


(h) Such other information as to the identity or character of the person or persons having the 


management or supervision of the applicant's business or the method or plan of doing such 


business as the County may deem proper to fulfill the purpose of this Article in the protection of 


the public good. 


 


Sec. 8-268. Commencement and forefeiture. 


 


(a) All holders of licenses under this Division must, within six (6) months after the issuance 


of the license, open for business the establishment referred to in the license,.  Failure to open the 


licensed establishment as referred to in this subsection within the six-month period shall serve as 


an automatic forfeiture and cancellation of the license, and no refund of license fees shall be 


made to the license holder. 


 


(b) Any holders of a license under this Division who shall begin the operation of the 


business as authorized in the license, but who shall for a period of three (3) consecutive months 


thereafter cease to operate the business as authorized in the license, shall automatically forfeit his 


or her license, which license shall by virtue of such failure to operate be canceled without the 


necessity for any further action by the County Administrator or his or her designee. 


 


Sec. 13-54. Character qualification. 


 


 No license or employee permit shall be issued to or renewed for any person who conducts 


or is employed in a business in which such owner or employee has, within five (5) years of 


issuance or renewal, been convicted of, or pled guilty or nolo contendere to, any felony or 


misdemeanor involving theft-related offenses.  The licensee shall submit information to the 


County regarding the identity of all owners and employees on a continuing basis as changes 


occur.  This information shall be forwarded to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department for the 


purpose of enforcing these character qualifications. 


 


Sec. 13-55. False statements. 


 


 The application shall state thereon that "It is unlawful for any person to make a false 


statement on this application. Any false statement made on the application form will void the 


application and constitute a violation of this section." 


 


Sec. 13-568-269. Employee permit. 


 


 Each person authorized or allowed to conduct any phase of business regulated in this 


Article shall be considered an employee and must have an approved employee permit.  This 


permit must be displayed along with the business license in accordance with license display 


requirements. 


 


(a) No person shall be an employee of a dealer of precious metals and/or gems in any 


capacity until such person has been authorized by Code Enforcement to be so employed and 


issued an employee’s identification badge.  This identification bade must be worn at all times 







19 


 


while working.  It shall be the duty of the dealer of precious metals and/or gems to ensure that 


there is compliance with the provisions of this section. 


 


(b) No employee permit shall be issued to any person who has been convicted of or entered a 


plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) years prior to the date of the application 


and/or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contendere to any misdemeanor involving 


crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, assault, battery, any violation of the 


“Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs within two (2) years prior to the date of the application. 


 


Sec. 13-57. License and permit fee. 


 


(a) All businesses licensed under this Article shall pay those fees as designated in a schedule 


of fees adopted by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


(b) There shall be no proration or refund of any license fee.  The license and permit issued 


under this Article shall be a personal privilege and shall not be transferable. 


 


Sec. 8-270. Transfer of license. 


 


No license granted for a dealer of precious metals and/or gems shall be transferable 


except upon application to Code Enforcement in the same form and manner, and subject to the 


same requirements with respect to the transferee as are applicable in an original application.  Any 


such license may be transferred only to another applicant doing the same business at the same 


place as the license holder to whom the license was originally issued.  When permission for 


transfer has been granted, the original licensee or transferee shall cause the license to be 


delivered to the County Administrator or his or her designee who shall record such transfer, and 


the transferee shall pay a fee as a condition precedent to engaging in operations under the 


license.  The fee for such transfer shall be established in a schedule of fees adopted by the Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-588-271. Records to be keptRecord of transactions. 


 


  


(a) Every dealer of precious metals and/or gems shall maintain a permanent electronic record 


of its purchase transactions in which an accurate description of all property traded or sold to the 


dealer can be transmitted to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department via an electronic automated 


reporting system, approved by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department.  Each of these 


transactions shall contain an accurate description of all property traded or sold to the dealer and 


shall be made at the time of each transaction, provided that the following information is 


included: 


 


(1) The date and time of the trade or sale of the property. 


 


(2) The full name, street address and telephone number of the customer making the 


trade or sale. 


 


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"







20 


 


(3) A description of the customer in terms of sex, race, date of birth, height and 


weight, as well as the driver's license number of the customer or some other 


identification card which contains a photograph of the customer. 


 


(4) A description of the traded or sold property by serial, model or other number, if 


available, including kind, style, material, color, design, kind and number of stones 


in jewelry and all identifying marks. 


 


(5) The number of the receipt or transaction issued for the property traded or sold. 


 


(6) The price paid. 


 


(7) A photograph of the customer and the item traded or sold which will be taken 


with the electronic automated reporting system at the time of the transaction. 


 


(8) The signature of the customer. 


 


(9) The fingerprint of the customer as generated by the electronic automated system. 


 


(b) Every dealer of precious metals and/or gems shall enter each transaction as it occurs into 


the electronic automated reporting system or may elect to upload electronically via the internet a 


batch file of all transactions for each business day to the administrator of the electronic 


automated reporting system immediately at the conclusion of each business day.  The 


administrator of the electronic automated reporting system will electronically transmit all 


transactions to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


(c) In the event that the electronic automated reporting system becomes temporarily or 


permanently disabled, dealers of precious metals and/or gems will be notified as soon as 


possible.  In this event, said dealers will be required to make records of transactions in paper 


form.  Such paper forms must include all information as enumerated in paragraph (a) of this 


Code Section.  Dealers of precious metals and/or gems shall maintain a three-day supply of these 


paper forms. 


 


(d) Any duly authorized law enforcement officer may, during the ordinary hours of business 


or any other reasonable time, inspect any pawnbroker's electronic records at the pawnbroker's 


place of business to ensure compliance with this section. 


 


(e) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall select and designate the required 


automated reporting system.  All dealers of precious metals and gems shall, in addition to other 


records, keep books wherein shall be entered an accurate description of all property received by 


or pledged or sold to them.  Such description shall include the brand name of the article, any 


identifying mark, number, initial, social security number or name of any person or company, and 


a statement of the kind of material of which it is made.  In such books there shall be entered also 


the name of the person by whom same was delivered, deposited or sold, the name of the person 


receiving the item and the time when such transaction occurred.  These entries shall be made no 


later than one (1) hour after the transaction.  Such books and the articles so pledged or sold shall 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"







21 


 


at all times be subject to inspection and examination by any law enforcement officer of the 


County or the State.  Any person engaged in any business licensed under this Article who shall 


fail or refuse to keep the records as provided in this Section, or who shall make false entries 


concerning the transaction or who shall fail or refuse to permit an inspection by any law 


enforcement officer of the County or the State of his or her records and of the property pledged 


with or sold to him or her, shall be guilty of a violation of this article. 


 


Sec. 13-59. Daily report to Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


 Every business licensed hereunder shall make a daily report through the approved data 


entry program to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department of all property pledged or purchased 


during the twenty-four-hour period ending at 10:00 p.m. on the date of the report.  Such reports 


shall be entered in to the data base and shall show: the name and address of the business; time of 


transaction; sequel number of the purchase tickets; amount paid or advanced; full description of 


articles, including kind, style, material, color, design, kind and number of stones in jewelry and 


all identifying names, marks, numbers, initials, or social security numbers; and a description of 


the person selling or trading the item, including name, address, race, weight and height. 


 


Sec. 13-60. Records maintained for four years. 


 


 The record of each purchase transaction regulated by this Article shall be maintained for a 


period of not less than four (4) years from the date of transaction. 


 


Sec. 13-618-272. Special report. 


 


 It shall be the duty of each business licensed hereunder to keep an additional record book 


in which it shall list the name, address, race, height and age of every person from which the 


licensee receives smelted or non-formed precious metals.  If the licensee receives or should be 


aware he or she is receiving smelted or non-formed precious metal from one (1) person or 


household more than twice in any one-year period, he shall immediately report each and every 


such occurrence to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


Sec. 13-628-273. Identification required. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Article Division shall, when receiving or purchasing 


goods, require a proper identification (e.g., driver's license, military I.D. card, state approved I.D. 


card or company employee I.D. card) containing a picture showing positive identification of the 


person who is selling or trading, and such identification shall be verified. 


 


Sec. 13-638-274. Fingerprinting required. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Article Division shall require every person from whom 


it accepts goods to place the fingerprint of his or her right index finger (if right index finger is 


missing, the next finger in line will be used) on digital systems on the copy of the purchase ticket 


which is to be sent to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 







22 


 


Sec. 13-648-275. Erasers, obliterations, write-overs and type-overs not allowed. 


 


 No person licensed under this Article Division shall erase, obliterate, type over, write 


over or in any way cause the original entry on the records required under this Article Division to 


become illegible.  All purchase tickets filled out in error shall be sent to the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Department in their numbered order along with daily reports and shall have the word 


"VOID" typed or written across the front, such entry shall not be used to cause the original entry 


to be illegible.  If an error is made and the ticket is still to be used, then a single line shall be 


drawn through the incorrect entry.  This line shall not cause the original entry to be illegible and 


the correct information entry shall be made on the next available area. 


 


Sec. 13-658-276. Serial numbers. 


 


 No business licensed under this Article Division shall accept any articles which have had 


the serial number altered, obliterated or removed from such article or which the person who is 


making the business transaction knows should have a serial number upon it, unless such person 


immediately notifies the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


Sec. 13-668-277. Alteration. 


 


 Any item required to be kept or displayed shall be so kept in its original form as it existed 


when first received and its physical characteristics shall not be altered in any manner. 


 


Sec. 13-678-278. Purchased articles not to be disposed of for fifteen days after 


acquisition. 


 


 Every business licensed under this Article Division shall hold, on the premises designated 


in the license for doing business, every item required to be listed under this Article Division for 


at least fifteen (15) days before disposing the same by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise.  The 


provisions of this section shall not apply to purchases from licensed wholesalers in the normal 


course of business. 


 


Sec. 13-688-279. Display of goods pledged or purchased. 


 


 For a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of purchase or trade, all goods required to 


be listed shall be kept in a clearly visible place on the premises, designated in the license for 


doing business, and readily available to the general public.  Every item required to be displayed 


shall have attached to it either a copy of the purchase ticket or the number of the ticket. 


 


Sec. 13-698-280. Location of businesses. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this article Division shall be located in strict compliance 


with the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance and at a location with an identifiable street address, 


which shall be stated on the license or renewal application along with other required information.  


No business licensed under this Article Division shall change its address without giving advance 


notice to the County and receiving an approval of the change, such approval to be granted if the 







23 


 


new location complies with this Article Division and the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  No 


business licensed under this Article Division shall be operated in or from a motel or hotel. 


 


Sec. 13-708-281. Hours of operation. 


 


 All businesses licensed under this Article shall close their establishment and cease 


transacting any business no later than 8:00 p.m. each day and begin their operation and 


commence transacting business at no time before 8:00 a.m. each day.All holders of licenses 


under this Division shall operate only between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m, Monday 


through Saturday. 


 


Sec. 13-718-282. Business transactions conducted outside. 


 


 No business transactions by any business licensed under this Article Division shall be 


conducted outside the building designated as the normal place to conduct transactions unless the 


business does not have a building.  Business transaction means any part of a business including 


inspection or appraisal of any goods when it is possible for such goods to be taken inside the 


building where transactions normally are made ("possible" being used here in the broadest 


sense); and no persons other than those possessing a license or employee permit shall be allowed 


to conduct any form of business transactions either inside the establishment or on any part of 


outside land area specified on the license. 


 


Sec. 13-728-283. Separate business establishment. 


 


 No business licensed under this Article Division shall be designed or operated so as to 


allow access to the business immediately from any other business without first exiting the other 


business into a common or open area to which the public at large has access. 


 


Sec. 13-738-284. Dealing with minors. 


 


 It shall be unlawful for any person licensed under this Article Division to receive in 


purchase or trade any goods of any character or of any description from any person who has not 


attained the age of eighteen (18) years. 


 


Sec. 13-748-285. Stolen items. 


 


 Every person licensed under this Article Division shall, immediately upon request, turn 


over to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department every item believed by the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Department to be a stolen item.  Such item shall be returned to the licensee only after it 


has been determined that such item is not stolen.  If it is determined that such item is stolen, it 


shall be returned to its lawful owner. 


 


Sec. 13-758-286. Inspection. 


 


 As a condition of any license covered under this ArticleDivision, every licensee agrees to 


allow any law enforcement officer, pursuant to his or her official duties, to be and remain on or 







24 


 


about his premises without the formality of a warrant, provided the officer does not unduly 


interfere in the licensee's operation. 


 


Sec. 13-768-287. Penalties. 


 


 Any person licensed under this Article Division who shall engage in any of the following 


shall be guilty of a violation of this Code and punished as a misdemeanor, as defined by State 


law: 


 


(1) Fail to make any entry of any required item in a permanent record book; 


 


(2) Make any false entry therein; 


 


(3) Falsify, obliterate, record so that information is illegible, destroy or remove from 


his or her place of business such permanent record book; 


 


(4) Refuse to allow any law enforcement officer of the County or the State to inspect 


such permanent record book, or any goods in his or her possession, during the 


ordinary hours of business or any reasonable time, or refuse to allow any member 


of the general public to inspect goods in his or her possession being held under 


purchase or trade (within the fifteen-day purchase period) during ordinary 


business hours; 


 


(5) Fail to maintain a record of each purchase or trade transaction for at least four (4) 


years; or 


 


(6) Violate any other provisions of this ArticleDivision. 


 


Operation of any business under this Article Division in violation of any provision of this Section 


shall constitute a separate offense for each day of operation. 


 


Sec. 13-778-288. Revocation Suspension and revocation of license. 


 


  


Immediate suspension, revocation, or forfeiture of a license shall occur only after notice 


and opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Commissioners consistent with the procedures 


set forth in this Division and only upon the following occurrences: 


 


(a) Any license issued under this Division for a dealer of precious metals and/or gems shall 


be immediately revoked in the case of bankruptcy, receivership or levy of legal process upon the 


licensed outlet or property therein. 


 


(b) Except as provided in this Division, any change in the ownership of any entity operating 


or owning a licensed outlet shall be grounds for revocation of the license by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"







25 


 


(c) A license shall be immediately suspended or revoked by the Board of Commissioners 


upon learning that a licensee furnished fraudulent or untruthful information in the application for 


a license, or omits information required in the application for a license, or fails to pay all fees, 


taxes, or other charges imposed under the provisions of this Division. 


 


(d) The Board of Commissioners shall immediately suspend or revoke the license of any 


licensee who does not meet the qualifications set forth in this Division at any time such 


information becomes known to the Board of Commissioners.Any license issued under this 


Article shall be subject to suspension or revocation in the same manner as specified in Article I 


of this Chapter for pawnshops. 


 


Sec. 8-289. Appeal procedure. 


 


(a) Upon receipt of a timely appeal of an administrative denial, or upon alleged violation of 


those items in Section 8-288, the County Administrator or his or her designee shall schedule a 


hearing before the Board of Commissioners and provide written notice to the adverse party of the 


time, place and date of the scheduled hearing.  The County Administrator or his or her designee 


shall also state in the written notice the basis for the administrative denial or the violation or 


occurrence alleged that forms the basis for the denial or potential suspension or revocation.  


After notice of hearing, matters scheduled for hearing may only be continued by agreement of 


the County Attorney and the adverse party and/or counsel for the adverse party. 


 


(b) The Board of Commissioners shall have the duty of conducting hearings concerning the 


denial, revocation, or suspension of a license.  The standard of proof on all issues in the hearing 


shall be a preponderance of the evidence and a determination will be made on the basis of the 


evidence presented at the hearing. 


 


(c) At the hearing, after presentation of the case against the adverse party, the adverse party 


will have an opportunity to present his or her case, to rebut the allegations made against him or 


her, and present whatever defenses he or she has.  The adverse party shall have the right to be 


represented by an attorney, at the expense of the adverse party, and to present evidence and 


cross-examine opposing witnesses.  An opportunity for rebuttal shall be provided. 


 


(d) At the conclusion of the hearing, the findings and conclusions of the Board of 


Commissioners shall be forwarded to the County Administrator or his or her designee and it shall 


be the duty of County Administrator or his or her designee to provide written notification via 


certified mail to the adverse party of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


(e) The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be final unless appealed to the 


Superior Court of Fayette County within thirty (30) days of receipt by the adverse party of the 


written notification of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Secs. 13-78 through 13-998-290 through 8-310. Reserved. 


  







26 


 


ARTICLE IIIDIVISION 4.   FLEA MARKET OPERATORS. 


 


Sec. 13-100. Purpose; function. 


 


This Article is adopted in order to promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare 


of the inhabitants of Fayette County, Georgia, by regulating the location, design and maintenance 


of flea markets. 


 


Sec. 13-1018-311. Definitions. 


 


 Unless the context of this Article Division requires, the following definitions shall be 


used in the interpretation and administration of this ArticleDivision.  Words used in the present 


tense include the future; the singular number shall include the plural and the plural the singular; 


and the word "shall" is mandatory and not optional. 


 


 Booth shall mean a designated space or a structure constructed for the purpose of 


displaying and selling merchandise within a flea market. 


 


 Flea market shall mean any business whereby there is operated a center for shopping 


where a vendor or vendors sell merchandise to the public including salvage operations, antique 


stores, thrift stores, jewelry stores, coin shops, clothing shops or other businesses involving the 


sale of common merchandise. 


 


 Flea market operator shall mean any person operating, maintaining and promoting a flea 


market. 


 


 Flea market vendor shall mean any person renting a booth from a flea market operator 


for sales to the public of new and used merchandise. 


 


Sec. 13-1028-312. Exclusions. 


 


 All temporary fund-raising events which involve the sale of merchandise by school, 


church or nonprofit organizations shall be exempt from the coverage of this Article. 


 


 These regulations shall not apply to the following: 


 


(a) An annual fund-raising event which is organized for the exclusive benefit of any 


community chest, fund, foundation, association, or corporation organized and operated for 


religious, educational, or charitable purposes, provided that no part of any admission fee or 


parking fee charged vendors or prospective purchasers or the gross receipts or net earnings from 


the sale or exchange of personal property, whether in the form of a percentage of the receipts or 


earnings, as salary, or otherwise, inures to the benefit of any private shareholder or person 


participating in the organization or conduct of the event; 


 


(b) An antique mall where all sales transactions are through the antique mall operator; 


 







27 


 


(c) An arts and crafts fair where the sale of such is by a person or persons who produced 


such arts and crafts; 


 


(d) A farmer’s market where persons offer the sale of agricultural products including value-


added agricultural products and; or 


 


(e) A County sponsored event. 


 


Sec. 13-1038-313. Permit License requirement. 


 


 It is unlawful for any person to locate a flea market or to construct, alter or extend any 


flea market within the limits of unincorporated Fayette County unless a valid permit license is 


issued by the Code Enforcement Department for Fayette County.  Construction, if necessary, 


must begin within one hundred eighty days after issuance of the permitlicense. 


 


Sec. 13-1048-314. Applications. 


 


(a) All applications for permits licenses for flea markets shall be submitted to Code 


Enforcement on a form prescribed by Code Enforcement.  Said application shall include, but not 


be limited to, the following: 


 


(1) Name and address of the applicant; if the applicant is a partnership, the names and 


addresses of the partners; if the applicant is a corporation, the names and 


addresses of the officers and directors; 


 


(2) Name and address of the owner of the land upon which the flea market is to be 


located.  In the event that the applicant intends to locate and/or operate a flea 


market on leased property, a copy of the lease shall be submitted with the 


application.  If, however, the property is owned by the applicant, said applicant 


shall attach to the application a copy of the deed conveying title unto the 


applicant; 


 


(3) Telephone number of the applicant; 


 


(4) A list of references, including banking institutions and character references; 


 


(5) Social security number of the applicant; 


 


(4) The affidavit of each person whose name appears on an application for a license 


pursuant to subsection swearing that such person has not been convicted of or 


entered a plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) years prior to the 


date of the application or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contender to 


any misdemeanor involving crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, 


assault, battery, any violation of the “Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs. 


 


(56) Date of birth and identification (i.e., driver's license) of the applicant; 







28 


 


 


(67) Fingerprints of applicant; 


 


(8) The location and legal description of the flea market; and 


 


(9) A drawing or sketch showing the location of the flea market and design of parking 


spaces. 


 


(b) All applications for a license to operate a booth within a flea market shall be submitted to 


Code Enforcement on a form prescribed by Code Enforcement.  Said application shall include, 


but not be limited to, the following: 


 


(1) Name and address of the applicant; if the applicant is a partnership, the names and 


addresses of the partners; if the applicant is a corporation, the names and 


addresses of the officers and directors; 


 


(2) Name and address of the flea market within which the booth will be located; 


 


(3) Telephone number of the applicant; 


 


(4) A list of references, including banking institutions and character references; 


 


(5) Social security number of the applicant; 


 


(4) The affidavit of each person whose name appears on an application for a license 


pursuant to subsection swearing that such person has not been convicted of or 


entered a plea of nolo contendere to any felony within five (5) years prior to the 


date of the application or been convicted of or entered a plea of nolo contender to 


any misdemeanor involving crimes of moral turpitude, gambling, sexual offenses, 


assault, battery, any violation of the “Family Violence Act”, or illegal drugs. 


 


(56) Date of birth and identification (i.e., driver's license) of the applicant; and 


 


(67) Fingerprints of applicant. 


 


Sec. 13-1058-315. License. 


 


(a) Any person, firm, organization or corporation conducting a flea market on property 


located within the unincorporated portion of Fayette County shall obtain a license for such flea 


market and shall pay a yearly license fee adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


(b) Any person, firm, organization or corporation operating a booth within a flea market 


located within the unincorporated portion of Fayette County shall obtain a license for such booth 


and shall pay a yearly license fee adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Board of 


Commissioners. 







29 


 


 


 


Sec. 13-1068-316. Inspections. 


 


(a) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department is authorized and directed to make such 


inspections as are necessary to determine satisfactory compliance with this ArticleDivision. 


 


(b) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department shall have the power to enter at reasonable 


times upon any private or public property for the purpose of inspecting and investigating 


conditions relating to enforcement of this ArticleDivision. 


 


(c) The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department may request inspections by and verifications of 


compliance from the Department of Health relating to any of the rules and regulations of the 


State and/or local health department.  Representatives of the Department of Health shall have the 


same powers of entry and inspection as provided for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department. 


 


Sec. 13-1078-317. RevocationSuspension and revocation. 


 


Immediate suspension, revocation, or forfeiture of a license shall occur only after notice 


and opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Commissioners consistent with the procedures 


set forth in this Division and only upon the following occurrences: 


 


(a) Any license issued under this Division for a flea market shall be immediately revoked in 


the case of bankruptcy, receivership or levy of legal process upon the licensed outlet or property 


therein. 


 


(b) Except as provided in this Division, any change in the ownership of any entity operating 


or owning a licensed outlet shall be grounds for revocation of the license by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


(c) A license shall be immediately suspended or revoked by the Board of Commissioners 


upon learning that a licensee furnished fraudulent or untruthful information in the application for 


a license, or omits information required in the application for a license, or fails to pay all fees, 


taxes, or other charges imposed under the provisions of this Division. 


 


(d) The Board of Commissioners shall immediately suspend or revoke the license of any 


licensee who does not meet the qualifications set forth in this Division at any time such 


information becomes known to the Board of Commissioners.(a) Any permit for a flea market 


may be revoked when it is found to be in violation of this Article. 


 


(b) Should the Board of Commissioners find that conditions exist which are in violation of 


any provision of this Article, it shall give notice to the permittee or owner that unless such 


conditions or practices are corrected within thirty (30) days, the permit will be revoked.  Notice 


shall be served either personally or by certified mail, return receipt requested. 


 







30 


 


(c) If at the end of the thirty (30) days a further inspection reveals that the conditions or 


practices have not been corrected, the Board of Commissioners shall then revoke the permit and 


give notice of such suspension in writing to the permittee or owner.  Upon notice of revocation, 


the permittee or owner shall cease operation and/or construction of the flea market. 


 


Sec. 8-318. Appeal procedure. 


 


(a) Upon receipt of a timely appeal of an administrative denial, or upon alleged violation of 


those items in Section 8-314, the County Administrator or his or her designee shall schedule a 


hearing before the Board of Commissioners and provide written notice to the adverse party of the 


time, place and date of the scheduled hearing.  The County Administrator or his or her designee 


shall also state in the written notice the basis for the administrative denial or the violation or 


occurrence alleged that forms the basis for the denial or potential suspension or revocation.  


After notice of hearing, matters scheduled for hearing may only be continued by agreement of 


the County Attorney and the adverse party and/or counsel for the adverse party. 


 


(b) The Board of Commissioners shall have the duty of conducting hearings concerning the 


denial, revocation, or suspension of a license.  The standard of proof on all issues in the hearing 


shall be a preponderance of the evidence and a determination will be made on the basis of the 


evidence presented at the hearing. 


 


(c) At the hearing, after presentation of the case against the adverse party, the adverse party 


will have an opportunity to present his or her case, to rebut the allegations made against him or 


her, and present whatever defenses he or she has.  The adverse party shall have the right to be 


represented by an attorney, at the expense of the adverse party, and to present evidence and 


cross-examine opposing witnesses.  An opportunity for rebuttal shall be provided. 


 


(d) At the conclusion of the hearing, the findings and conclusions of the Board of 


Commissioners shall be forwarded to the County Administrator or his or her designee and it shall 


be the duty of County Administrator or his or her designee to provide written notification via 


certified mail to the adverse party of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


(e) The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be final unless appealed to the 


Superior Court of Fayette County within thirty (30) days of receipt by the adverse party of the 


written notification of the decision of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 13-1088-319. Minimum size of booths. 


 


 The minimum size of a booth within a flea market shall be ten feet (10’) by ten feet (10’). 


 


Sec. 13-1098-320. Structural requirements. 


 


 All flea markets shall be within a permanent structure which meets the minimum 


standards of the applicable Fayette County Building Code.  Move-in buildings or temporary 


structures of any type are prohibited. 


 







31 


 


Sec. 13-1108-321. Exterior of structure. 


 


 There shall be no displays permitted on or around the outside of the structure which 


houses a flea market. 





		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12 Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12 Backup

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12 Backup

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12 Backup 1

		Backup 2

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12- Red-Lined Backup 3

		Copy- Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-12 Final Form Backup 4df



		1

		2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #3


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of September 2014 as National Preparedness Month in Fayette County.


Each year, the Georgia Emergency Management Agency (GEMA) promotes preparedness through the recognition of a month where 


preparedness is the focus of a media campaign. 


 


Each local government, by responding to GEMA's initiative by issuing a proclamation, exhibits the importance of preparation by the 


citizens in the event of a disaster. 


 


This year, as in previous years, Governor Nathan Deal has designated the month of September as National Preparedness Month.


Proclamation of September 2014 as National Preparedness Month in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
               


  National Preparedness Month   
 


A PROCLAMATION 


WHEREAS,     Protection of the safety and security of residents is one of the most fundamental responsibilities 
of government, and every citizen plays an important role in ensuring their own safety in the 
event of an emergency; and 


  


WHEREAS,      Fayette County Government coordinates with state and federal agencies, as well as cities, 
nonprofit agencies, faith based organizations and businesses to ensure that our communities 
are prepared in the event of an emergency; and 


  


WHEREAS,      Although emergencies are unplanned and can occur at any time, they can be prepared for, by 
assembling emergency kits, having a plan, and  staying informed in an emergency; and 


  


WHEREAS,      By preparing in advance, individuals, families, businesses and communities can help protect 
themselves and take steps to ensure their own safety in an emergency, with simple steps 
including creating a disaster supply kit, making a family disaster plan, and staying informed; and  


  


WHEREAS,      During National Preparedness Month 2014, Fayette County agencies will work within 
communities to raise awareness of emergency preparedness and steps that individuals can 
take to be ready in the event of any emergency, giving them the opportunity to learn more about 
how they can protect themselves and their families; and 


  


WHEREAS,  The Fayette County Emergency Management Agency along with all other emergency response 
organization partners urge all residents of our community to utilize the month of September 
2014 to prepare for all types of disasters.  


  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Fayette County Board of Commissioners  extends appreciation 
to all agencies responsible for emergency preparedness for their role in helping protect the lives and safety of 
Fayette County residents, urges all residents to take steps to prepare themselves for emergencies, and does 
hereby proclaim September 2014, as “NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS MONTH” in Fayette County, Georgia.  


 
 


So proclaimed this 28th day of August 2014,    
     


         
 
 
 
 
              


                      STEVE BROWN, Chairman  
   





		Commissioners- 2014 National ...Month Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- 2014 National Preparedness Month Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #7


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation honoring Bob and Bernadette Carty who are celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.


Mr and Mrs. Bob and Bernadette Carty are celebrating their 50th wedding anniversary.  Fayette County is honored to recognize the 


Carty's and to celebrate their marriage.


Proclamation honoring Bob and Bernadette Carty who are celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


               
               


CELEBRATION OF 50 YEARS OF MARRIAGE 


WHEREAS,  The sanctity of marriage, ordained by God, is the most time honored and treasured 


commitment in which a man and woman can join together; and it is within this 


healthy, loving commitment that two people flourish, enjoying the best of what each 


has to offer in life; and 


WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Robert (Bob) and Bernadette Carty met in high school in 1959; and 


WHEREAS, They were united in matrimony on September 5, 1964 at St. James Catholic Church, 


Setauket, Long Island, New York; and 


WHEREAS, Bob and Bernadette have demonstrated a firm commitment to each other through 


good times and bad, through sickness and through health; and 


WHEREAS, This couple share their loving relationship with their five children, Rob Carty, Rita 


Purvis, Brigid Gonzalez, Katie Tierney and Bernie Haberman, their 16 grandchildren, 


Clare, Megan, Isabel, Robby, Greg, Cecilia, Emma, Danielle, Patrick, Emily, Grace, 


Matthew, Sabrina, John, Luke and James; and  


WHEREAS, Throughout the years, they continue to show their respect, love and commitment to 


each other, while continually sharing their kindness and wisdom with all that 


surround them; and 


WHEREAS, They have set an example of love, unity, and relationship for others to follow in their 


commitment to the sanctity of marriage for the past 50 years;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby join with the 
residents of Fayette County in congratulating Mr. and Mrs. Robert (Bob) and Bernadette Carty 
as they celebrate their 50th wedding anniversary.    
 


 


So proclaimed this 28th day of August 2014,   


      


         
 
 
              


                      STEVE BROWN, Chairman  
   





		Commissioners- Bob and Bernadette Carty Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Bob and Bernadette Carty Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #1


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of September 2014 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in Fayette County.


Families, caregivers, charities and research groups across the United States observe September as Childhood Cancer Awareness 


Month.  


 


In the U.S., nearly 15,000 children under the age of twenty-one are diagnosed with cancer every year, of which approximately of whom  


will not survive the disease. 


 


A diagnosis of cancer turns the lives of the entire family upside down. 


 


The objective of Childhood Cancer Awareness Month is to put a spotlight on the types of cancer that largely affect children and on 


survivorship issues.  This effort is intended to bring awareness of childhood cancer and to help raise funds for research and family 


support.  


 


 


Proclamation of September 2014 as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Due to scheduling difficulties, it is unlikely that a representative will be at the meeting to receive this proclamation, however, the Board 


has been asked to read the proclamation into the record.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 
 


A PROCLAMATION 
 


WHEREAS,  the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection report cancer is the leading 


cause of death by disease among U.S. children between infancy and age fifteen, with this tragic 


disease being detected in more than 15,000 of our country's young people each and every year; 


and 


 


WHEREAS,  one in five of our nation's children loses his or her battle with cancer, and many infants, 


children and teens will suffer from long-term effects of comprehensive treatment, including 


secondary cancers; and  


 


WHEREAS,  founded over twenty years ago by Steven Firestein, a member of the philanthropic Max Factor 


family, the American Cancer Fund for Children, Inc. and Kids Cancer Connection, Inc. are 


dedicated to helping these children and their families; and  


 


WHEREAS,  the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection provide a variety of vital 


patient psychosocial services to children undergoing cancer treatment at Children's at Scottish 


Rite Hospital in Atlanta,  Aflac Cancer Center, The Children's Hospital at The Medical Center of 


Central Georgia in Macon, as well as participating hospitals throughout the country, thereby 


enhancing the quality of life for these children and their families; and  


 


WHEREAS,  the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection also sponsor Courageous 


Kid Recognition Award ceremonies and hospital celebrations in honor of a child's determination 


and bravery to fight the battle against childhood cancer.  


 


NOW THEREFORE, WE, THE Fayette County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim the month of 


September as  


CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH IN FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


And in so doing urge all Fayette citizens to join us in supporting the research and development of a cure for 


childhood cancer and to continue to bring awareness of this worthy cause. 


 


So proclaimed this 14
th


 day of August 2014,   


         


 


 


              


                      STEVE BROWN, Chairman   


  





		Commissioners- Childhood Canc...eness Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Childhood Cancer Awareness Backup

		Commissioners- ChildhoodCancerAwareness- Backup a

		Commissioners- ChildhoodCancerAwareness Backup b

		Commissioners- ChildhoodCancerAwareness- Backup c

		Commissioners- ChildhoodCancerAwareness- Backup d

		Commissioners- ChildhoodCancerAwareness- Backup e












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #12


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Approval of staff's request to adopt the Agreement on Governance of the Fayette County Development Authority.


During the 2014 Board of Commissioner's Retreat, discussion was had concerning the need to restructure the make-up of the Fayette 


County Development Authority.  This need to restructure the authority was based off of a previous agreement allowing the Peachtree City 


Development Authority to designate one of its members to the Fayette County Development Authority.  However, the Peachtree City 


Development Authority was disbanded; leaving no appointment from that authority on the Fayette County Development Authority. 


 


The proposed Agreement on Governance of the Fayette County Development Authority now authorizes the Mayor and Council of 


Peachtree City to appoint one taxpayer residing in the City of Peachtree City to serve as a member on the Fayette County Development 


Authority.   


 


The Agreement also removes the appointment from the Peachtree City Airport Authority from being only the Chairperson of the Airport 


Authority and, instead, allows that one member of the Peachtree City Airport Authority can be designated to the Fayette County 


Development Authority.


Approval of staff's request to adopt the Agreement on Governance of the Fayette County Development Authority.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


All necessary municipalities and the Airport Authority have signed the Agreement.  This is an example of all jurisdictions working together 


for the betterment of economic and development opportunities throughout Fayette County.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Consent







Development Authority Agreement 


 


Red-Line 







4 


 


of Peachtree City.  Thereafter, all succeeding terms shall be for a period of four (4) 


years. 


B. All parties agree that the chairman one member of the Peachtree City 


Airport Authority shall serve as a member of the Fayette County Development 


Authority, such membership member to be designated by majority vote of the 


Peachtree City Airport Authority, such membership to run concurrently with 


his/her tenure as chairman a member of the Peachtree City Airport Authority; 


provided, however, that at the end of each calendar year, or upon the occurrence of 


a vacancy in this position, the Peachtree City Airport Authority, by majority vote, 


shall have the right to designate a different member of the Peachtree City Airport 


Authority for this position for the ensuing year, or the remainder of the calendar 


year, as the case may be.  If no such designation occurs, the previously designed 


member shall continue to serve until a successor shall be designated pursuant to the 


terms of this paragraph. 


C. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Fayetteville shall appoint 


one (1) taxpayer residing in the City of Fayetteville to serve as a member of the 


Fayette County Development Authority, such member to serve for a term of four 


(4) years or until his/her successor is duly appointed; provided, however, that in the 


event the City of Fayetteville should activate a development authority, then the 


right of appointment given to the City of Fayetteville herein shall immediately 







Development Authority Agreement 


 


Document Approved by All Parties 







STATE OF GEORGIA


COUNTY OF FAY ETTE


AGREEMENT ON GOVERNANCE OF THE FAY ETTE COUNTY
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this __ day of


_______, 20 14, by and between Fayette County, acting by and throu gh


its Board of Commissioners (hereinafter sometimes referred to a the "County"),


and the City of Peachtree City, acting by and through its Mayor and Council


(hereinafter sometime referred to as "Peachtree City"), and the Peachtree City


Airport Authority, and the City of Fayetteville, acting by and through its Mayor


and City Council (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Fayetteville"), and the


Town of Tyrone, acting by and through its Mayor and Town Council (hereinafter


sometimes referred to as "Tyrone" ).


WHEREAS, the County, the Development Authority of Peachtree City, the


Peachtree City Airport Authority, the City of Fayetteville, and the Town of Tyrone


previously entered into an agreement dated February 27, 1997, providing for the


organization and governance of the Development Authority of Fayette County,


Georgia, now known as the Fayette County Development Authority, a nine


member board established by Fayette County; and


WH EREAS, the Development Authority of Peachtree City has become


inacti ve and has no functioning officers; and


1







WHER EAS, it is the desire of the parties to the original agreement to


substitute Peachtree City for the Devel opment Authority of Peachtree City as a


party thereto; and


WH EREAS, the County, the Peachtree City Airport Authority, Fayetteville,


Peachtree City, and Tyrone agree that it is necessary for the various development


authorities and municipalities within Fayette County to work together in a


coordinated effort to promote economic development within all areas of the county


and for the general welfare of all the county residents; and


WH EREAS, to achieve such a united effort, the County has previously


establi shed a board of nine (9) members to constitute and govern the Fayette


County Development Authority.


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and


conditions herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby


acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:


I.


The Fayette County Development Authority will be respon sible for funding


economic development efforts throughout all of Fayette County, including those


various municipalities contained therein and named above, to the extent it is


funded by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.


2







2.


In exchange for the funding efforts of the Fayette County Development


Authority, the parties agree that the Fayette County Development Authority will


have the right of first refusal on all projects which require financing to develop


within Fayette County.


3.


Should the Fayette County Development Authority choose not to issue


bonds to finance any project within a reasonable period of time, then any other


municipal development authority will have the right to finance such project and


issue any bonds within its own designated jurisdiction.


4.


A. The Mayor and Council of the City of Peachtree City shall appoint


one (I) taxpayer residing in the City of Peachtree City to serve as a member of the


Fayette County Development Authority, such member to serve for a term of four


(4) years or until his /her successor is duly appointed; provided, however, that in the


event the City of Peachtree City should activate a development authority, then the


right of appointment given to the City of Peachtree City herein shall immediately


lapse, and any unexpired term of the appointee of the City of Peachtree City shall


immediately terminate. The initial member from Peachtree City shall serve the


remainder of the unexpired term originally allocated to the Development Authority


3







of Peachtree City. Thereafter, all succeeding terms shall be for a period of four (4)


years.


B. All parties agree that one member of the Peachtree City Airport


Authority shall serve as a member of the Fayette County Development Authority,


such member to be designated by majority vote of the Peachtree City Airport


Authority, such membership to run concurrently with his/her tenure as a member


of the Peachtree City Airport Authority; provided, however, that at the end of each


calendar year, or upon the occurrence of a vacancy in this position, the Peachtree


City Airport Authority, by majority vote, shall have the right to designate a


different member of the Peachtree City Airport Authority for this position for the


ensuing year, or the remainder of the calendar year, as the case may be. If no such


designation occurs, the previously designated member shall continue to serve until


a successor shall be designated pursuant to the terms of this paragraph.


C. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Fayetteville shall appoint


one (I) taxpayer residing in the City of Fayetteville to serve as a member of the


Fayette County Development Authority, such member to serve for a term of four


(4) years or until his/her successor is duly appointed; provided, however, that in the


event the City of Fayetteville should activate a development authority, then the


right of appointment given to the City of Fayetteville herein shall immediately


4







lapse, and any unexpired tenn of the appointee of the City of Fayetteville shall


immediate ly terminate,


D. The Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Tyrone shall appoint


one (I) taxpayer residing in the Town of Tyrone to serve as a member of the


Fayette County Development Authority, such member to serve for a term of four


(4) years or unti l his /her successor is duly appointed; provided, however , that in the


event the Town of Tyrone should activa te a develop men t au thority, then the right


of appoi ntment give n to the Town of Tyrone herein sha ll immedi atel y lapse, and


an y unexpired term of the appo intee of the Town of Tyrone sha ll immediately


terminate.


5.


The County sha ll appoint five (5) additional members to the Fayette Co unty


Developmen t Authori ty for four (4) -year terms.


6.


This Agreement shall commence immediately upon its execution and shall


continue in effect unt il any party terminates this Agreement by giving ninety (90)


days prior written no tice.


7.


This Agree ment supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in


writi ng, between the contracting part ies with respec t to its subject ma tte r; no other


5







agreement, statement, or promi se between the parties hereto relating to the subject


matter of this Agreement that is not contained herein shall be valid or binding


unless in writing and signed by all parties.


8.


The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well


as the rights and duties of the parties under this Agreement, shall be governed by


and construed under the laws of the State of Georgia.


This Agreement has been executed at Fayette County, Georgia, the day and


year first above written.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
FAYETTE COUNTY


(SEAL)


By:
STEVE BROWN, Chairman


ATTEST:


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


(SEAL)


MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR THE
CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY


B~~~
VANESSA FLEISCH, Mayor


6







MA YOR AND COUNC lL FOR THE
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE


(SEAL)


TEST:


aww&aJJL
Anne Barksdale, City Clerk


MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR THE
TO CN OF TYRO »:


(SEAL)


By:


Dee Baker, Town Clerk
PEACHTREE CITY AlRPORT
AUTHORITY


(SEAL)


ATTEST:


~.R M()):cL


By:
LEY, Chairman


7





		Commissioners- Development Authority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Development Authority Backup

		Agreement 14 Draft-Red-Line

		Commissioners- Development Authority Backup

		1

		Red-Line

		2

		Commissioners- Development Authority Backup














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #2


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of September 2014 as Kappa Kappa Iota Month in Fayette County.


Kappa Kappa Iota is a 501 C3 not-profit service organization to educators, and it is the oldest professional organization for educators in 


the nation.  It has been present in the State of Georgia since 1958. 


 


Kappa Kappa Iota promotes the advancement of education by providing an effective network for the exchange of education and teaching 


practices by educators.  The organization provides a scholarship to a graduating high school senior who is planning to enter into a field of 


education. 


 


The MU Chapter of the organization that is located in Fayette County is part of this national organization through the statewide 


organization, and it assists Fayette County's Public Schools through volunteering in classrooms and by donating the Teacher of the Year 


plaque. 


 


September 2014 is National Kappa Kappa Iota Month.


Proclamation of September 2014 as Kappa Kappa Iota Month in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


               


               Kappa Kappa Iota        
 


A PROCLAMATION 


WHEREAS,  Kappa Kappa Iota, a 501 c3 non-profit service organization to educators, is the oldest 


professional organization for educators in the nation and has been present in the 


State of Georgia since 1958; and 


WHEREAS, Kappa Kappa Iota promotes the advancement of education by providing an effective 


network for the exchange of education and teaching practices by educators; and 


WHEREAS, Kappa Kappa Iota provides a scholarship to a graduating high school senior planning 


to enter the field of education; and 


WHEREAS, MU chapter MU Chapter located in Fayette County is part of this national 


organization through the statewide organization and assists Fayette County Public 


Schools through volunteering in classrooms and donating the Teacher of the Year 


plaque; and 


WHEREAS, Kappa Kappa Iota collects teddy bears to donate to organizations to present to 


children in need and children’s books to present to facilities that assist children who 


are victims of abuse or neglect; 


WHEREAS, September 2014 is National Kappa Kappa Iota month. 
 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby proclaim the 
month of September 2014 as   


 


KAPPA KAPPA IOTA MONTH    
 


and call upon the citizens of Fayette County to observe this month in an appropriate manner recognizing 
Kappa Kappa Iota and its works.  


 


So proclaimed this 28th day of August 2014, 


         
 
 
 
              


                      STEVE BROWN, Chairman  
   





		Commissioners- Kappa Kappa Io...ation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Kappa Kappa Iota Proclamation Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #6


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of the Peachtree City Convention and Visitors Bureau for their efforts in recruiting volunteers for the Divas Half Marathon and 


5K in Atlanta-Peachtree City.


The television show "Drop Dead Diva" is filmed in Peachtree City, and so the Diva Half Marathon is scheduled to take place in Peachtree 


City on September 6, 2014. 


 


The run is scheduled to begin at Shakerag Knoll at the McIntosh Trail Recreation Complex.   


 


The Peachtree City Convention and Visitors Bureau has worked hard in recruiting this event while bringing tourisim to Fayette County 


and staging an impressive race that will have up to 4,100 competitors. 


 


Recognition of the Peachtree City Convention and Visitors Bureau for their efforts in recruiting volunteers for the Divas Half Marathon and 


5K in Atlanta-Peachtree City.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #4


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of August 29, 2014 as Sigvaris Day in Fayette County.


Peachtree City is home to Sigvaris’ North America manufacturing facility, which makes socks and hosiery with graduated compression.  


The socks and hosiery are tightest at the ankle while decreasing in pressure the higher they go up one's leg. 


  


Compression garments help improve circulation and revive tired, achy legs, while helping with the treatment and prevention of varicose 


veins. Sigvaris Incorporated, headquartered in Sweden, is a global leader in the compression industry and has been making compression 


undergarments for more than sixty years. To learn more, visit sigvarisusa.com. 


 


Sigvaris celebrated its 150th Anniversary in business during the month of August. 


 


Fayette County Intern Haider Khan wrote the recognition and will read it during the meeting.


Proclamation of August 29, 2014 as Sigvaris Day in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
                     


  SIGVARIS Day in Fayette County  
 


A PROCLAMATION 
 


WHEREAS, The sewing supply store Ganzoni und Barthelts was formed in 1864 by Moritz Ganzoni Sträuli 


and Niklaus Barthelts in Winterthur, Switzerland, experiencing growth over the years with their 


product, the elastic bands for laceless half  boots; and 


 


WHEREAS,  By 1887, the store began to ship their products overseas, including  all of Europe, and even as far 


as North Africa and Argentina; and 


 


WHEREAS, Ganzoni und Barthelts showed determination during times of financial distress, with falling 


revenue during and after World Wars I and II; and 


 


WHEREAS, Between 1958 and 1960, Ganzoni und Barthelts and Karl Sigg, a doctor of treating maladies of 


the veins, partnered with each other and created SIGVARIS; and 


 


WHEREAS,  Ninety percent of all SIGVARIS products in North America are made in Fayette County, in the 


industrial park of Peachtree City; and 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PROCLAIM 


AUGUST 29, 2014 AS 


 


SIGVARIS DAY IN FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


and in doing so, we congratulate SIGVARIS for their tremendous achievement of maintaining an outstanding 


business for 150 years through turbulent times and changing economies, and we extend our gratitude to 


SIGVARIS U.S. for being an outstanding corporate citizen in Fayette County and for being an ideal business 


model for aspiring entrepreneurs. 


 


So Proclaimed this 28th day of August 2014 


 


 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


___________________________ 


                  Steve Brown, Chairman  





		Commissioners- Sigvaris Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Sigvaris Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #5


Extension Office Extension Director Kim Jackson


Recognition of Fayette County 4-H members and their many accomplishments during the past year. 


The Fayette County 4-H program provides youth ages 9-19 opportunities to learn leadership, citizenship, and life skills. 


 


Youth in the Fayette County 4-H program are given a chance to "learn by doing" through project work, classes, workshops, judging 


events, camps and other learning activities. 4-H participants have the opportunity to share the skills and knowledge they've gained 


through county, district, state and national competitive events and, when elected, to serve on county, district and state governing boards. 


 


This recognition will include a PowerPoint presentation of pictures taken at 4-H Camp. 


 


Kim Jackson and Commissioner David Barlow will speak about 4-H during this presentation.


Recognition for a job well done and for representing Fayette County at district, state, and national levels.


Not Application.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Commissioner Barlow would like to recognize 4-H Agent April Nasworthy and 4-H Program Assistant Sara Kahley during this recognition. 


Several 4-H kids may be in the audience for pictures afterward.  Commissioner Barlow may give stories of his experience at 4-H Camp. 


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition







Cloverleaf Camp at Rock Eagle







Fayette County 4-H’ers boxing 


up poptabs for the Ronald 


McDonald House







Forestry Judging







Wildlife 


Judging











District Project 


Achievement







Shotgun Club







State Horse 


Show







State Congress in Atlanta





		Extension- 4-H Agenda Request File

		Extension- 4-H Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


New Business #14


Finance Mary S Parrott


Consideration of Resolution 2014-18 adopting the 2014 Property Tax Millage Rates. 


Each year, the Board of Commissioners set millage rates for the purpose of levying property taxes. At the Board of Commissioners' 


August 28, 2014 meeting staff will request the BOC to adopt Resolution 2014-18 to establish the 2014 property tax millage rates.  


 


The proposed 2014 millage rates are as follows: 


 General Fund's Maintenance and Operations - 5.602 mills, down from 5.714 or 1.96% 


 Fire Services - 3.070 mills, no change  


 EMS Services - 0.456 mills, no change 


 E-911 Services - 0.210 mills, no change 


 


The County wide proposed tax levy for 2014 totals $32,880,945.65, a $108,135.21 increase, 0.33% more than the 2013 tax levy of 


$32,772,810.44. The small change in the tax levy is a result of rolling back the General Fund's millage rate to negate the increase in 


property taxes resulting from positive property reassessments. 


Approval of Resolution 2014-18 adopting the 2014 Property Tax Millage Rates. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, August 28, 2014







State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette              
  


RESOLUTION LEVYING COUNTY TAX 


FOR YEAR 2014 


No. 2014 - 18 


 
Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 28th  day of August, 2014, that upon 


$1,659,539,686 the value of all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as 


appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all other taxable property in unincorporated Fayette County, 


Georgia, there be levied and collected for County general maintenance and operations purposes as set 


forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, and as hereinafter amended and as 


otherwise authorized by law, a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2014, for all such purposes of  $5.602 per 


$1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes of 5.602 mills. 


Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 28th  day of August, 2014, that upon 


$2,737,102,593  the value of all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as 


appears upon the digest thereof, and upon all other taxable property in incorporated Fayette County, 


Georgia, there be levied and collected for County general maintenance and operation purposes, as set 


forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, as hereinafter amended and as 


otherwise authorized by law, ad valorem, for the year 2014, at the aggregated rate for all such 


purposes to be levied as follows:  


  
1. All property located within the City of Fayetteville  will be assessed at $5.602 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Fayetteville of  5.602 mills; 


 


2. All property located within the City of Peachtree City will be assessed at  $5.602 per $1000.00 


of assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Peachtree City of  5.602 mills; 


 


3. All property located within the Town of Tyrone will be assessed at $5.602 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Tyrone of  5.602 mills; 


 


4. All property located within the Town of Brooks will be assessed at  $5.602 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Brooks of  5.602 mills; 


 


 







5. All property located within the Town of Woolsey will be assessed at $5.602 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for County general maintenance and 


operations purposes in Woolsey of  5.602 mills. 


 


In accordance with provisions within the Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code or Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing Fire 


Protection Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette County with the 


exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City and the City 


of Fayetteville. Upon $1,990,420,080  the value of all property taxable within the Special Fire District, 


as appears on the digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $3.070 per $1,000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for the Special Fire Tax District of 3.070 mills. 


In accordance with provisions within Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code of Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing 


Emergency Medical Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette 


County with exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City. 


Upon $2,669,015,502 the value of all property taxable within the Special EMS Tax District, as appears 


upon the digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $0.456 per $1,000.00 of assessed 


valuation, constituting a total tax levy for the Special EMS Tax District of 0.456 mills. 


In accordance with provisions within the Constitution of the State of Georgia and the Official 


Code of Georgia, Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of providing E-911 


Communication Services to its citizens, said tax district encompassing all of Fayette County. Upon 


$4,396,642,279 the value of all property within the Special E-911 Tax District, as appears upon the 


digest thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $0.210 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, 


constituting a total tax levy of the Special E-911 Tax District of 0.210 mills. 


Upon recommendation of the Fayette County Board of Education, it is ordered that upon 


$3,934,451,957 the value of all property taxable for educational purposes in Fayette County as appears 


upon the digest thereof, and upon all other property in Fayette County, both real and personal, there be 


levied a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2014, for educational purposes in the amount of $20.000 per 


$1,000.00 of the assessed valuation on the digest as aforesaid, constituting a total tax levy for 


educational purposes of 20.000 mills. 


It is further ordered that upon $3,971,913,957 the value of all taxable property in said County 


as appears upon the digest thereof, computed by deducting only the special homestead exemption for 


certain persons 65 years of age and over, and upon all other taxable property in said County, both real 


and personal, there be levied and collected a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2014, for the purpose of 







 providing a sinking fund for retiring bonded indebtedness and discharging interest thereof, of the 


Fayette County School District, in the amount of $1.45 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, 


constituting a total tax levy of 1.45 mills. 


It is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, this 28th day 


of August, 2014, that all taxes, as described and as levied by the adoption of this Resolution, shall be 


due and collected by the Tax Commissioner of Fayette County, by the close of the business day on 


November 15, 2014. 


 


So resolved this, the 28th day of August, 2014, by the 
 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Steve Brown, Chairman 


Attest: 
 


___________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 





		Finance- Millage Agenda Request File

		Finance- Millage Backup

		Resolution 2014-18

		Finance- Millage Backup

		Finance- Millage- Backup-email 1

		Finance- Millage- Resolution 2014-19

		Finance- Millage Backup- PowerPoint

		Finance- Millage- Backup-email 2

		Finance- Millage- Backup- Draft Press Release 














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #17


Information Systems Chief Information Officer Phil Frieder


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Bartlett Fiber, Incorporated, in the amount of $138,056, for the 


installation of 7.2 miles of fiber optic cabling that would provide future data/voice connectivity to the E911 Operations Center, the 


Emergency Operations Center, Fire Station #7, and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant.


During the 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat, discussion was held about installing fiber optic cabling that would connect various 


county locations and enhance county-wide network capabilities. 


 


Bartlett Fiber is installing fiber optic cabling for Verizon Wireless, and Fayette County can benefit from this effort by entering into an 


agreement with Bartlett Fiber to lay 7.2 miles of fiber optic line from the intersection of County Line Road and McDonough Road to the 


intersection of Hampton Road and State Route 92. (See attached Site Map) 


 


This creates a fiber network backbone along this corridor enhancing our network, data/voice capabilities by providing critical connectivity 


to the E911 Operations Center, the Emergency Operation Center, Fire Station #7, and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant. 


 


Bartlett Fiber's contract would be $138,056.  The County will purchase and provide conduit, fiber,optic cable, mule tape, pull boxes, and 


canisters with an estimated cost to purchase these items being $43,523. This will bring the total project cost to $181,579.  


Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Bartlett Fiber, in the amount of $138,056, for the installation of 


7.2 miles of fiber optic cabling along several roads within Fayette County that would provide future data/voice connectivity to the E911 


Operations Center, the Emergency Operations Center, Fire Station #7, and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant.


This request will be funded via the existing Information Technology STP Capital Program and available Capital Contingency. 


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


New technology requires high band width that is not currently available with our current infrastructure capabilities.  This effort will 


capitalize on utilizing technology as a strategic advantage and will save Fayette County and estimated cost of $411,462 due to the 


economics of scale.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 New Business







 
 


 


August 20, 2014 


 


Mr. Dana Burditt 


Bartlett Fiber, Inc. 


4200 Dawnwood Drive 


Gastonia, N.C. 28056 


 


Subject: Contract for Installation of Fiber Optic Cable 


 


Dear Mr. Burditt 


 


Fayette County wishes to contract with your company for installation of conduit, fiber optic cable, and 


pull boxes.  Enclosed please find the proposed contract with two (2) signature pages.  Please sign both 


copies in the signature page, and stamp them with your corporate seal, if applicable.  Also, in 


compliance with Georgia’s immigration compliance law, you will need to sign and notarize the 


enclosed Contractor’s Affidavit. 


 


Please return the completed documents, along with the Certificate of Insurance, to the Fayette 


County Purchasing Department as soon as possible. 


 


If you need additional information, please contact me at 770-305-5393 or 


tburgess@fayettecountyga.gov.  


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


 


Ted L. Burgess 


Director of Purchasing 


Fayette County, Georgia 







Scope of Work 
 
 
The work of this contract will result in 7.2 miles of fiber optic cable enclosed in conduit, installed 
underground, spliced, terminated, and tested.   
 
The County will purchase and provide conduit, fiber optic cable, mule tape, pull boxes, and canisters.  
The County will provide sufficient mule tape for one run to be pulled in the conduit footage.  The 
Contractor will furnish all labor and perform all operations necessary to complete installation excluding 
the conduit, fiber optic cable, mule tape, pull boxes, and canisters.  The Contractor will install all of the 
required material whether specifically addressed in these specifications or not. 
 
The Contractor will perform all optical fiber cable testing and provide all documentation, as‐builts and 
warranty, as described below. 
 
The Contractor will install a total of 38,106 feet of 1 ½ inch conduit and 39,016 feet of 24‐strand fiber 
optic cable as follows: beginning at the intersection of McDonough Road and County Line Road heading 
south, placing 11,616 feet of conduit to the intersection of County Line Road, South Jeff Davis Drive, and 
Inman Road.  The Contractor will continue through this intersection south on Inman Road, placing 
15,840 feet of conduit to the intersection of Inman Road and State Route 92.  The Contractor will 
continue south/southeast from the intersection of Inman Road and State Route 92 on State Route 92, 
placing 10,560 feet of conduit to the intersection of State Route 92 South and Hampton Road South. 
 
The Contractor will pull one run of mule tape in the conduit. 
 
The Contractor will place a total of 100 pull boxes.  Boxes will be placed at the following intersections: 


 County Line Road and McDonough Road (This pull box shall be placed at a white arrow on 
pavement to avoid future conflict with McDonough Road widening project.) 


 Inman Road / County Line Road / South Jeff Davis Drive 


 State Route 92 and Inman Road 


 State Route 92 South and Hampton Road North 


 State Route 92 South and Hampton Road South 
 
The Contractor will place the remaining pull boxes at one thousand (1,000) foot intervals throughout the 
project.  An extra 25 feet of fiber optic cable will be provided at each pull box. 
 
Contractor’s labor charges and estimated quantities are as follows: 
 
             Charge     Extended 
         Units    Per Unit         Price 


Conduit labor    38,016       $2.50      $95,040.00 
Fiber optic labor  39,016          1.00        39,016.00 
Pull box installation         40      100.00         4,000.00 


            Total             $138,056.00 
 
 


 







TESTING REQUIREMENTS 


A. General 


 


1. All cables and termination hardware shall be 100% tested for defects in 


installation and to verify cabling system performance under installed conditions 


according to the requirements of ANSIITIA.IEIA‐568‐B.l‐3. All strands of each 


installed cable shall be verified prior to system acceptance. Any defect in the 


cabling system installation including but not limited to cable, connectors, feed 


through couplers, and enclosures shall be repaired or replaced in order to 


ensure 100% useable strands in all cables installed. 


 


B. Fiber Testing 


 


1. All fiber testing shall be performed on all fibers in the completed end‐to‐end 


system. There shall be no splices unless clearly defined in the design or 


Drawings.  These tests also include continuity checking of each fiber. 


2. Test set‐up and performance shall be conducted in accordance with A 


ANSIITIA.IEIA‐526‐7 and/or ANSIITIAIEIA‐568‐B.3 Standards, and to the 


manufacturer's application guides. 


3. Attenuation testing shall be performed with a stable launch condition using 


two‐meter jumpers to attach the test equipment to the cable plant. The light 


source shall be left in place after calibration and the power meter moved to the 


far end to take measurements. 


4. Singlemode 


a. Test the fiber cable bi‐directionally with an OTDR and uni‐


directionally with a power meter light/ source.  Fiber must be tested 


at both 1310mn and 1550nm. Maximum attenuation dB/Km @ 


131Onm/1550mn shall be 0.5/0.5 for outside plant and l.O/l.O for 


inside plant. Maximum attenuation per connector pair shall be .75 


dB. 


 


C.  Test Results 


 


1. Test documentation shall be provided on disk/digitally as part of the as‐built 


package. The disk shall be clearly marked on the outside front cover with the 


words "Project Test Documentation", the project name, and the date of 


completion (month and year). The results shall include a record of test 


frequencies, cable type, strand and cable I.D., measurement direction, reference 


setup, and crew member name(s). The test equipment name, manufacturer, 


model number, serial number, software version and last calibration date will 


also be provided at the end of the document. Unless the manufacturer specifies 


a more frequent calibration cycle, an annual calibration cycle is anticipated on 


all test equipment used for this installation. The test document shall detail the 







test method used and the specific settings of the equipment during the test as 


well as the software version being used in the field test equipment. 


2. The field test equipment shall meet the requirements of ANSIITIA/EIA‐568‐B.l‐3. 


3. Printouts generated for each cable by the wire fiber test instruments shall be 


submitted as a part of the documentation package. Alternately, the contractor 


may furnish this information in electronic form or CD. These CDs shall contain 


the electronic equivalent of the test results as defined by the Specification and 


be of format readable from Microsoft Word. 


4. When repairs and re‐tests are performed, the problem found and corrective 


action taken shall be noted, and both the failed and passed test data shall be 


documented. 


 


DOCUMENTATION 


A.  As‐Built record documentation for communications work shall include: 


Cable routing and identification 


Connection and programming schedules as appropriate 


Equipment material list including quantities 


Spare parts list with quantities if applicable 


Details not on original Contract Documents 


Test Results 


Warranties 


B  The Contractor shall provide and maintain at the site a set of prints on which shall be accurately 


shown the actual installation of all work under this section, indicating any variation from contract 


drawings, including, changes in pathways, sizes, locations and dimensions. All changes shall be clearly 


and completely indicated as the work progresses. 


C. Program prints shall be available for inspection by the Owner or any of his representatives and may 


be used to determine the progress of communications infrastructure work. 


D. At the completion of the work, prepare a new set of as‐built drawings, of the work as actually noted 


on the marked‐up prints, including the dimensioned location of all pathways. 


E. Furnish as‐built drawings and documentation to the Project Manager. 


 


OPERATIONS AND MANUAL 


  A. After competition of the work, the Contractor shall furnish and deliver Point‐to‐point 


diagrams, cabling diagrams, construction details and cable labeling details. 


 







WARRANTY 


1. All contractor furnished equipment is to be new and warranted free of faulty workmanship 


and damage. 


2. The minimum warranty provisions specified shall not diminish the terms of individual 


equipment manufacturer’s warranties. 


3. Contractor shall provide a 1‐year warranty for labor, workmanship and supplies not 


provided by owner. 


4. Contractor shall provide a 1‐year warranty for contractor supplied components used in the 


installed Pathway & Support Infrastructure. Defective and/or improperly installed 


contractor‐supplied products shall be replaced and/or correctly installed at no cost to the 


Owner. 


 







AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement, made this ______ day of ____________, 20______, by and between Fayette 
County, Georgia (hereinafter called “Owner”) and Bartlett Fiber, Inc. (hereinafter called 
“Contractor”). 
 
WITHESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 
mentioned: 
 


1. The Contractor will install conduit, fiber optic cable and pull boxes, mule tape, splicing, 
termination, and conduct testing as described in the agreement. 
 


2. The Contractor will furnish all of the services as described in said agreement. 
 


3. The Contractor agrees to perform all of the services described in the contract 
documents, and comply with the terms therein, for compensation of an amount not to 
exceed $138,056. 
 


4. The term “Contract Document” means and includes the following: 
a. This Agreement 
b. Scope of work, including the attachment 
c. Contractor’s (E-Verify) Affidavit 
d. Notice to proceed 


 
5. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, 


executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 


6. Any dispute which may arise under this Agreement shall be resolved under the laws of 
the State of Georgia and venue shall be proper in Fayette County, Georgia. 
 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their 
duly authorized official, this Agreement on the date first above written. 
 
     OWNER: 
     Fayette County, Georgia 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     STEVE RAPSON, County Administrator 
 
ATTEST FOR OWNER: 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
Name: ______________________ 
      (Please Print) 
 
Title: _______________________ 







     CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
     ______________________________________(L.S.) 
 
 
     By: _______________________________________ 
 
 
     Name: _____________________________________ 
 
 
     Address: ___________________________________ 
 
 
     ___________________________________________ 
 
 
     ___________________________________________ 
 
 
     ___________________________________________ 
 
 
     Employer Identification Number: 
 
 
     _____________________________________________ 







P:\Ted B\IT\Fiber Optic - Bartlett\T&C.doc 


 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


 
 
 


1. Insurance: The contractor shall, without expense to the county, carry the following insurance, to be 
in effect throughout the term of the contract, in at least the amounts and limits as follows: 


 
a. General Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence, including 


bodily and personal injury, destruction of property, and contractual liability. 
 


b. Automobile Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 combined single limit each occurrence, 
including bodily injury and property damage liability. 


 
c. Worker’s Compensation & Employer’s Liability Insurance: Workers Compensation as 


required by Georgia statute. 
 


The contractor shall provide Certificates of Insurance for all required coverage.  The certificate shall 
list an additional insured as follows:  


 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 


 
2. Unauthorized Performance: The county will not compensate the contractor for work performed 


unless the work is authorized under the contract, as initially executed or as amended. 
 


3. Assignment of Contract: Assignment of the contract will not be authorized. 
 


4. Indemnification: The contractor shall defend and indemnify the county and all its officers, agents and 
employees against any suits, actions, or other claims brought on account of any injuries or damages to 
any person, persons, or property resulting from any negligent act or fault of the contractor, or of any agent, 
employee, subcontractor or supplier in the performance of the contract.  The contractor shall pay any 
judgment with cost which may be obtained against the county growing out of such injury or damages. 
 


5. Patent Indemnity: The contractor guarantees to save the county, its agents, officers, or employees 
harmless from liability of any nature or kind for use of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted composition, 
secret process, patented or unpatented invention, articles or appliances furnished or used in the 
performance of the contract, for which the contractor is not the patentee, assignee or licensee. 


 
6. Severability: The invalidity of one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses or sections contained 


in the contract shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of the contract.  If any provision of 
the contract is held to be unenforceable, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations arising 
under such provision to the extent that the provision is unenforceable.  In such case, the contract 
shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to make it enforceable while preserving its 
intent. 


 
7. Delivery Failures: If the contractor fails to deliver contracted goods or services within the time 


specified in the contract, or fails to replace rejected items in a timely manner, the county shall have 
authority to make open-market purchases of comparable goods or services.  The county shall have 
the right to invoice the contractor for any excess expenses incurred, or deduct such amount from 
monies owed the contractor.  Such purchases shall be deducted from contracted quantities. 


 
8. Substitution of Contracted Items: The contractor shall be obligated to deliver products awarded in 


this contract in accordance with terms and conditions specified herein. If a contractor is unable to 
deliver the products under the contract, it shall be the contractor’s responsibility to obtain prior 
approval of the ordering agency to deliver an acceptable substitute at the same price quoted in the 
contractor’s original bid.  In the event any contractor consistently needs to substitute or refuses to 
substitute products, the County reserves the right to terminate the contract or invoke the “Delivery 
Failures” clause stated herein. 
 







P:\Ted B\IT\Fiber Optic - Bartlett\T&C.doc 


9. Inspection and Acceptance of Deliveries: The county reserves the right to inspect all goods and 
products delivered.  The county will decide whether to accept or reject items delivered. The inspection 
shall be conclusive except with respect to latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as shall 
amount to fraud.  Final inspection resulting in acceptance or rejection of the products will be made as 
soon as practicable, but failure to inspect shall not be construed as a waiver by the county to claim 
reimbursement or damages for such products which are later found to be in non-conformance with 
specifications.  Should public necessity demand it, the county reserves the right to use or consume 
articles delivered which are substandard in quality, subject to an adjustment in price to be determined 
by the Purchasing Director. 


 
10. Termination for Cause: The county may terminate the contract for cause by sending written notice to 


the contractor of the contractor’s default in the performance of any term of this agreement.  
Termination shall be without prejudice to any of the county’s rights or remedies by law. 


 
11. Termination for Convenience: The county may terminate the contract for its convenience at any 


time with 7 days’ written notice to the contractor.  In the event of termination for convenience, the 
county will pay the contractor for services performed.  The county will compensate partially completed 
performance based upon a signed statement of completion submitted by the contractor, which shall 
itemize each element of performance completed. 


 
 
 











 


INFORMATION SYSTEMS- WATER SYSTEM 


 


OVERALL MAP FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT 


 


(The Orange Line represents the proposed 


area for fiber optic cabling.) 









		Information Systems- Proposed...oject Agenda Request File

		Information Systems- Proposed Fiber Project Backup

		Cover Letter

		Information Systems- Proposed Fiber Project Backup

		INFORMATION SYSTEMS-Overall Map-1

		2

		Information Systems- Proposed Fiber Project Backup

		Information Systems- Proposed Fiber Project Backup-a

		Purchasing - Fiber Project Backup 1

		Purchasing - Fiber Project Backup 2

		Purchasing - Fiber Project Backup 3

		Purchasing - Fiber Project Backup 4



		Information Systems- Proposed Fiber Project Backup-Site Map
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #8


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. T-019-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a reduction of the requirements of 


Section 110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers to develop a 185-foot Monopole Telecommunication Tower 


by reducing the 1,000 foot setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet. 


Skyway Towers and PM&A came before the Fayette County Planning Commission on June 5, 2014 requesting authorization to reduce 


the 1,000-foot setback from an adjacent municipality (Fayetteville) to 114-feet in order to erect a Monopole Telecommunication Tower. 


 


The specific property under consideration is the site of Fayette Self Storage located in Land Lot 168 of the 5th District and it fronts on 


New Hope Road and State Rote 85 North. 


 


During the June 5, 2014 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commissioner approved the request 4-1 with Doug Powell voting in 


opposition.  This request was taken to the Board of Commissioners on June 26, 2014 for consideration and was declined in a 3-2 vote 


with Commissioners Oddo and McCarty opposing the motion to decline. 


 


The Applicants took the request back through the Planning Commission on August 7, 2014 where it received unanimous support for 


approval.  The City of Fayetteville has considered this request and has no objection to the tower being placed 114 feet from its municipal 


border.


Approval of Petition No. T-019-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a reduction of the requirements of Section 


110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers to develop a 185-foot Monopole Telecommunication Tower by 


reducing the 1,000 foot setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, June 26, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Public Hearing

















































































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition T-019-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition T-019-14 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #10


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Petition No. RP-052-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent, request to add six (6) lots to the 


Minor Subdivision Plat for Max Fuller, with said property being located in Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis 


Road.


This request is in conjunction with Rezoning Petition 1235-14.  


 


The Planning Commission recommended approval (4-1) of Petition RP-052-14. 


 


Staff recommends approval. 


 


Approval of Petition No. RP-052-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent, request to add six (6) lots to the 


Minor Subdivision Plat for Max Fuller, with said property being located in Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis 


Road.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, July 24, 2014


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is associated with Public Hearing #9- Petition No. 1235-14.  This request was tabled at the July 26 ,2014 Board of 


Commissioners meeting at the request of the applicant / agent.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Public Hearing



































































































































 
 
 
 


   


  
 

 
    
 


  
 	  


   


	     
 
   
 


   
 


   


             
             


      
         


              
           


     


        


              
          





		Planning and Zoning- Revised ...52-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Revised Plat RP-052-14 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #11


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1237-14, Kathy S. James, Owner, and Randy Boyd, Agent, request to rezone 1.05 acres from A-R to R-45 


for a Single-Family Residential lot, with said property being located in Land Lot 17 of the 9th District and fronting on State Route 92 North. 


The Planning Commission recommended (4-1) rezoning the the subject property (Petition 1237-14) from A-R to R-45 with one (1) 


recommended condition.  The recommended condition is as follows: 


 


That the owner/developer shall execute one (1) of the two (2) options below: 


 


a. Remove the nonconforming single-family residence within 180 days from the effective date of this rezoning: or 


 


b.  If the owner/developer chooses to retain the single-family residence, variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the 


square footage requirement and allow the encroachment into the front yard setback, shall be obtained from the Zoning Board of Appeals 


within 180 days from the effective date of this rezoning.  If the variances are denied, the owner/developer agrees to take all necessary 


action consistent with the direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals.   


 


Staff recommendations approval of Petition 1236-14 with one (1) condition.


Approval of the Planning Commission's and Staff's recommendation to approve Petition No. 1237-14, Kathy S. James, Owner, and 


Randy Boyd, Agent, request to rezone 1.05 acres from A-R to R-45 for a Single-Family Residential lot, with said property being located in 


Land Lot 17 of the 9th District and fronting on State Route 92 North with one (1) condition.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Public Hearing















































































€













		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1237-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1237-14 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #9


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1235-14, Max Fuller, Owner, and Moore Bass Consulting, Inc., Agent, request to rezone 10.56 acres from 


A-R to R-45, with said property being located in Land Lot 87 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Road.


The Planning Commission recommended (4-1) rezoning the the subject property (Petition 1235-14) to R-50 with two (2) recommended 


conditions.  The recommended conditions are as follows: 


 


1.  That a 30 foot undisturbed buffer, inclusive of the setback,  is required along the western and southern boundary of the subject 


property.  Said buffer shall be shown on the Final Plat and each property deed for the proposed lots shall also state the buffer 


requirements. 


 


2.  That a decel-accel lane is required along the entire frontage of the subject property. 


 


Planning and Zoning/ Engineering staff recommends R-45 zoning with two conditions that include a 30 foot undisturbed buffer and 


required conditions to improve traffic safety.  


 


Concerning the decel-accel lane: Public Works is supports of looking at other options, as proposed by the applicant, for addressing the 


sight-distance and associated safety concerns along South Jeff Davis.  Those options are listed in the second recommended condition.


Approval of the Staff's  recommendation to rezone (Petition No. 1235-14) 10.56 acres from A-R to R-45 (Staff) with one (1) recommended 


Condition or Planning Commission's recommendation to rezone R-50 (Planning Commission) with two (2) recommended Conditions.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, August 28, 2014


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is associated with Public Hearing #10- Petition No. RP-052-14.  This item was tabled at the July 24, 2014 Board of 


Commissioners meeting at the applicant's / agent's request.


Thursday, August 28, 2014 Public Hearing







RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS


PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL TO R-50 WITH TWO RECOMMENDED


CONDITIONS:


1) That a 30 foot undisturbed buffer, inclusive of the setback, is required along the western


and southern boundary of the subject property. Said buffer shall be shown on the Final Plat


and each property deed for the proposed lots shall also state the buffer requirements.


2) That a decal-accel lane is required along the entire frontage of the subject property


PLANNING AND ZONING/ENGINEERING STAFF RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO R-45 WITH


RECOMMENDED CONDITIONs:


1) That a 30 foot undisturbed buffer, inclusive of the setback, is required along the western


and southern boundary of the subject property. Said buffer shall be shown on the Final Plat


and each property deed for the proposed lots shall also state the buffer requirements.


2) The following conditions are required to improve traffic safety:


a. The development shall be limited to a maximum of four driveway cuts, with each


driveway cut serving no more than two lots. Appropriate cross access


easements shall be provided. The driveway cuts shall be placed in locations to


maximize available sight distance. These locations and cross access easements


shall be indicated on the Final Plat


b. Within County right-of-way, each driveway shall have a minimum width of 15


feet wide and 15 foot return radii. This condition will be administered by the


Engineering Department in conjunction with the Driveway Permit Application


process and subsequent Building Permit.


c. Each lot shall have an appropriate turn-around area to ensure vehicles can pull-


out (rather than back-out) onto South Jeff Davis Road. The turn-around area


shall be approved by the Engineering Department prior to issuance of a Building


Permit.











RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 
 


If this petition is approved by the Board of Commissioners, it should be approved R-45 


CONDITIONAL subject to the following enumerated conditions.  Where these 


conditions conflict with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, these conditions shall 


supersede unless otherwise specifically stipulated by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


1.   That a 30 foot undisturbed buffer, inclusive of the setback, is required along the 


western and southern boundary of the subject property.  Said buffer shall be 


shown on the Final Plat and each property deed for the proposed lots shall also 


state the buffer requirements. 


 


2.  The following conditions are required to improve traffic safety: 


a. The development shall be limited to a maximum of four driveway cuts, 


with each driveway cut serving no more than two lots.  Appropriate cross 


access easements shall be provided.  The driveway cuts shall be placed in 


locations to maximize available sight distance.  These locations and cross 


access easements shall be indicated on the Final Plat 


b. Within County right-of-way, each driveway shall have a minimum width 


of 15 feet wide and 15 foot return radii.  This condition will be 


administered by the Engineering Department in conjunction with the 


Driveway Permit Application process and subsequent Building Permit.     


c. Each lot shall have an appropriate turn-around area to ensure vehicles can 


pull-out (rather than back-out) onto South Jeff Davis Road.  The turn-


around area shall be approved by the Engineering Department prior to 


issuance of a Building Permit.    


 







M:\Engineering\Plan Review\2014\Fuller Rezoning on South Jeff Davis 8 20 14.docx 8/20/2014 


Fayette County Engineering Department 


Plan Review Comment Sheet 
115 McDonough Road, Fayetteville, GA  30215 


Project Data 


Item:    Rezoning Application for 1235-14 


Name:    Max Fuller 


Location:    10.56 acres in LL 87 of 5
th


 district 


Date on Drawings:  Concept Plan  August 11, 2014 


“Received” Date:   August 14, 2014 


Eng. Department Reviewer: Phil Mallon, P.E., County Engineer 


     pmallon@fayettecountyga.gov


     770-320-6010 


Rezoning proposed from A-R to R-45.


Comments 


Following the Planning Commission hearing on this application the Engineering 


Department had several communications with the Applicant and Consultant.  As a result 


of these meetings the Consultant provided the attached Concept Plan and Sight Distance 


Profile.  Below are my comments on the application before the Board.  Recommended 


Conditions of Zoning are provided in bold.


1. Engineering does not support the Condition of Zoning for a continuous right 
turn/deceleration lane along the front of the property.  This requirement is not 


consistent with County regulations or American Association of State Highway 


and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) standards.  It would be a large cost and 


construction project relative to the proposed subdivision and the benefits to the 


public are uncertain. 


2. The development shall be limited to a maximum of four driveway cuts, with 


each driveway cut serving no more than two lots.  Appropriate cross access 


easements shall be provided. The driveway cuts shall be placed in locations 


to maximize available sight distance.  These locations and cross access 


easements shall be indicated on the Final Plat.


The Applicant has demonstrated, via the Sight Distance Profile, that each of the 


proposed lots should be able to have a driveway that satisfies the minimum 


desired sight distance of 500 feet for the posted speed limit of 45 mph (road grade 


is less than 3 percent).


The Engineering Department reviewed this information and visited the site to 


observe field condition along the road.  South Jeff Davis is a heavily travelled 


road (AADT in excess of 5,000 vpd) and many vehicles travel in excess of the 


posted speed limit.  In addition, there is a vertical curve along the property’s 


frontage.  Because of these conditions, Engineering recommends shared 







M:\Engineering\Plan Review\2014\Fuller Rezoning on South Jeff Davis 8 20 14.docx 8/20/2014 


driveways to improve safety for both the travelling public and future residents in 


the proposed lots.  Use of shared driveways allows for enhanced locations, fewer 


conflict points, and reduced risk of simultaneous turning movements. 


Note - Shared driveways often straddle a common property line.  This standard, 


however, may result in a driveway being located along the far edge of a property 


line despite builder/homeowner preference.  For implementation purposes, a five 


percent tolerance (of maximum distance) will be used for field staking.


3. Within County right-of-way, each driveway shall have a minimum width of 


15 feet wide and 15 foot return radii.  This condition will be administered by 


the Engineering Department in conjunction with the Driveway Permit 


Application process and subsequent Building Permit.


This enhancement is suggested by the Applicant on the Concept Plan.  The wider 


driveways help turn movements into the driveways. 


4. Each lot shall have an appropriate turn-around area to ensure vehicles can 


pull-out (rather than back-out) onto South Jeff Davis Road.  The turn-


around area shall be approved by the Engineering Department prior to 


issuance of a Building Permit.


This enhancement is also suggested by the Applicant on the Concept Plan.


Engineering will work with the Permits & Inspections Department during the 


home construction process to ensure adequate turn-around area is provided.


All conditions should be documented on the Final Plat. 


PJM 8/20/14 







834


838


842


846


850


854


858


862


866


870


874


13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00 25+00


LOT 1


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 1000+


S.D. RT - 578'±


LOT 2


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 1000+


S.D. RT - 584'±


LOT 3


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 1000+


S.D. RT - 607'±


LOT 4


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 1000+


S.D. RT - 641+


LOT 5


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 559'±


S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 7


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 605'±


S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 7


ALTERNATE DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 627'±


S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 8


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 624'±


S.D. RT - 1000+


834


838


842


846


850


854


858


862


866


870


874


26+00 27+00


LOT 6


DRIVEWAY


S.D. LT - 580'±


S.D. RT - 1000+


The Drawings  Specifications and other
documents prepa ed by Moore Bass
Consu ting  Inc  (MB) for this P oject are
inst uments of MB for use solely wi h
respect to his Project and  unless
o he wise prov ded  MB sha l be deemed
the au hor of hese documents and  sha l
retain a l common law  statutory and
o her reserved rights  including he
copyright


C
\A


4
1


0
0


8
\W


o
k
f


e
s
\A


4
1


8
-R


e
z
o


n
e


-E
x
h


b
t-


0
1


d
w


g
 P


R
O


F
L


E
 s


s
h


a
n


k
s


  
A


u
g


 1
4


 2
0


1
4


 -
 9


5
8


1
3


a
m


A418 Rezone Exhibit 01 dwg


805 N  GADSDEN STREET
TALLAHASSEE  FL 32303


CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHOR ZAT ON NO  00006108


2.0


SIGHT DISTANCE


PROFILE


S
O


U
T


H
 J


E
F


F
 D


A
V


IS
 D


R
IV


E


S
U


B
D


IV
IS


IO
N


B
R


E
N


T
, 
L


L
C


2
1
0
 N


. 
J
E


F
F


 D
A


V
IS


 D
R


IV
E


F
A


Y
E


T
T


E
V


IL
L


E
, 
G


A
 3


0
2
1
4







E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


N/F


THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1


P B  19  PG  27


LOT 4


N/F


JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 5


S
O


U
T
H


 JE
F
F
 D


A
V


IS
 D


R
IV


E
 - 80' R


/W


E


E


E


E


E


N F


JEFF DAVIS PLANTAT ON


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 4


N/F


JEFF DAV S PLANTATION


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 3


N/F


JEFF DAV S P ANTATION


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  75


LOT 2


N F


JEFF DAVIS PLANTAT ON


PHASE ONE


P B  8  PG  175


LOT 1


N F


JEFF DAVIS PLANTAT ON


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  75


LOT 6


N/F


JEFF D VIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 7


N F


JEFF DAV S PLANTAT ON


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 8


N/F


JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE


P B  18  PG  175


LOT 9


N/F


THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1


P B  19  PG  27


LOT 5


N/F


THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1


P B  19  PG  27


LOT 3


60' FR
NT SETBACK, TYP


40' REAR SETBACK  TYP


40
 R


E
A


R
 S


E
T


B
A


C
K


 T
Y


P


60' FRONT SETBACK, TYP


10
' S


ID
E 


SE
TB


AC
K,


 T
YP


.


10
' S


ID
E 


SE
TB


A
K,


 T
YP


.


10
 S


DE 
SE


TB
AC


K,
 T


YP
.


10
' S


ID
E 


SE
TB


CK,
 T


YP
.


L=523 13


N 56° 
 


 W             128 56'


S 
33


° 
43


' 0
6"


 W
   


   
   


   
 2


39
02


'


S 
38


° 
29


' 2
0"


 W
   


   
   


   
 3


48
60


'


S 
38


° 
29


' 2
0"


 W
   


   
   


   
 4


35
26


'


S 
8°


 2
9'


 2
0"


 W
   


   
   


   
 5


21
89


'


S 
38


° 
29


' 2
0


 W
   


   
   


   
 6


07
91


'


S 
38


° 
29


' 2
0"


 W
   


   
   


   
 3


69
.5


1'
N 3


8°
 2


9'
 2


0"
 E


   
   


   
   


 5
48


.6
1'


JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE


CURRENT ZONING:  'R-40'


THE WOODLANDS


PHASE ONE


CURRENT ZONING:  'R-45'


1 06 AC
(46 298 SF)


LOT 1


1 31 AC
(57 011 SF)


LOT 2


1 75 AC
(76 374 SF)


LOT 3


1 62 AC
(70 616 SF)


LOT 4


1 37 AC
(59 824 S )


LOT 5


1 12 AC
(48 915 SF)


LOT 6


1 00 AC
(43 569 SF)


LOT 7


1 00 AC
(43 569 SF)


LOT 8


S
 1


° 
24


 5
2


 W
   


   
   


   
 7


44
65


(S
)


S 89° 4' 05" E             1199 0


Δ 5° 55' 46"


R 4761.32'(S)


L 492.74'(S)


CH N 59° 13' 15" W


492.52'(S)


Δ 0° 20' 27"


R 87958.42'(S)


L 523.13'(S)


CH N 56° 31' 31" W


523.13 (S)


N 6
 15' 19" W             257 02 (S)


453 95'198 32'158 50158 5'158 75'71 13'


11
4


4
20


5
88


20
5


88


122 46'


241
0'


136 80'


125 29'


125 50'


125 56


125 56'


125 00'


252 54'


18 21'


PARCEL # 0519 007


ZONED:  A R


PARCEL # 0519 022


ZONED:  A R


PARCEL # 0519 061


ZONED:  A R


EX
IS


TI
N


G
 L


O
T 


L
N


E 
PE


R
 M


N
O


R
 S


U
BD


IV
IS


IO
N


 P
LA


T


850


860


850


850


8
4
0


850


850


PROPOSED


SHARED


DR VEWAY


TYP


D


D


PROPOSED ALTERNATE


DRIVEWAY LOCAT ON


FOR LOT 7


PROPOSED 25'


UND STURBED


BUFFER


25


PROPOSED 25'


UNDISTURBED


BUFFER


25


PROPOSED 25'


UND STURBED


BUFFER


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


PROPOSED


SHARED


DRIVEWAY


TYP


15'


EXIST NG


EDGE OF


PAVEMENT


EXISTING


POWER POLE


R15'


R
15


The Drawings  Specifications and other
documents prepa ed by Moore Bass
Consu ting  Inc  (MB) for this P oject are
inst uments of MB for use solely wi h
respect to his Project and  unless
o he wise prov ded  MB sha l be deemed
the au hor of hese documents and  sha l
retain a l common law  statutory and
o her reserved rights  including he
copyright


C
\A


4
1


0
0


8
\W


o
k
f


e
s
\A


4
1


8
-R


e
z
o


n
e


-E
x
h


b
t-


0
1


d
w


g
 P


L
A


N
 s


s
h


a
n


k
s


  
A


u
g


 1
4


 2
0


1
4


 -
 9


5
7


5
4


a
m


A418 Rezone Exhibit 01 dwg


805 N  GADSDEN STREET
TALLAHASSEE  FL 32303


CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHOR ZAT ON NO  00006108


1.0


CONCEPTUAL


PLAN


S
O


U
T


H
 J


E
F


F
 D


A
V


IS
 D


R
IV


E


S
U


B
D


IV
IS


IO
N


B
R


E
N


T
, 
L


L
C


2
1
0
 N


. 
J
E


F
F


 D
A


V
IS


 D
R


IV
E


F
A


Y
E


T
T


E
V


IL
L


E
, 
G


A
 3


0
2
1
4


1 inch =          ft


GRAPHIC SCALE


0 30 60


30


15


NOT TO SCALE


VICINITY MAP


DEVELOPMENT DATA
SOUTH JEFF DAVIS SUBDIVISION 


LAND LOT 87, 5TH DISTRICT


APPLICANT   BRENT, LLC


ADDRESS   210 N  JEFF DAVIS DRIVE, FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214


TELEPHONE   (770) 461 0478


PROPERTY OWNER   MAX FULLER


ADDRESS   335 GOZA ROAD, FAYETTEV LLE, GA 30215


TELEPHONE   (770) 301 4882


CONSULTANT   MOORE BASS CONSULT NG, INC


ADDRESS   324 INDUSTRIAL BLVD , MCDONOUGH, GA 30253


TELEPHONE   (770) 914 9394


SOURCE OF DATA   MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT PREPARED BY FOUR


CORNERS SURVEYING, L L C , DATED 11/13/2013


LOCATION   FAYETTE COUNTY, GA


PROJECT AREA   10 56 ACRES GROSS


CURRENT ZONING   A R


PROPOSED ZONING   R 45


TYPE OF SUBDIVISION   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


NUMBER OF LOTS   8


LOT SIZE   1 00 AC  (MIN)


TYPE OF STREETS   PUBLIC (EXIST NG)


BUILDING SETBACKS


FRONT   60'


REAR   40'


SIDE   20'


UTILITIES


WATER   FAYETTE COUNTY WATER DEPARTMENT


SEWER   ON SITE SEPTIC SYSTEMS


SHELBY  LN


B
R


IE
R


W
O


O
D


  D
R


.


C
A


LL
A


W
A


Y
  R


D
.


SOUTH JEFF DAVIS  DR


AMBERWOOD DR


E
M


E
R


A
LD


 L
A


K
E


 D
R


.


OLD SOUTH CT


CAVAL ER CT


A
N


T
E


B
E


LL
U


M


WAY


W
AY


W
AR


REN


LAMAR LN


SITE







E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


N/F
THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1
P.B. 19, PG. 27


LOT 4


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P.B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 5


S


O


U


T


H


 


J


E


F


F


 


D


A


V


I


S


 


D


R


I


V


E


 


-


 


8


0


'


 


R


/


W


E


E


E


E


E


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 4


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P.B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 3


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 2


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P.B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 1


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P.B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 6


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 7


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 8


N/F
JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION


PHASE ONE
P B. 18, PG. 175


LOT 9


N/F
THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1
P B. 19, PG. 27


LOT 5


N/F
THE WOODLANDS


PHASE 1
P.B. 19, PG. 27


LOT 3


60' FRONT SETBACK, TYP.


40' REAR SETBACK, TYP.


40
' R


EA
R 


SE
TB


AC
K,


 T
YP


.


60' FRONT SETBACK, TYP.


10
' S


IDE S
ET


BA
CK, 


TY
P.


10
' S


IDE
 SE


TB
AC


K, 
TY


P.


10
' S


IDE S
ET


BA
CK, 


TY
P.


10
' S


IDE S
ET


BA
CK, 


TY
P.


L=523.13


N 56° 57' 05" W


128.56'


S 3
3°
43
' 0
6"
W


23
9.0
2'


S 3
8°
29
' 20


" W


34
8.6
0'


S 3
8°
29
' 20


" W


43
5.2
6'


S 3
8°
29
' 20


" W


52
1.8
9'


S 3
8°
29
' 20


" W


60
7.9
1'


S 3
8°
29
' 20


" W


36
9.5
1'


N 3
8°
29
' 20


" E


54
8.6
1'


JEFF DAVIS PLANTATION
PHASE ONE


CURRENT ZONING:  'R-40'


THE WOODLANDS
PHASE ONE


CURRENT ZONING:  'R-45'


1.06 AC.
(46,298 SF)


LOT 1


1.31 AC.
(57,011 SF)


LOT 2


1.75 AC.
(76,374 SF)


LOT 3


1.62 AC.
(70,616 SF)


LOT 4


1.37 AC.
(59,824 SF)


LOT 5


1.12 AC.
(48,915 SF)


LOT 6


1.00 AC.
(43,569 SF)


LOT 7


1.00 AC.
(43,569 SF)


LOT 8


S
1°


24
52
" W


74
4.6


5'(
S)


S 89° 34' 05" E 1199.40'


Δ=5° 55' 46"


R=4761.32'(S)


L=492.74'(S)


CH=N 59° 13' 15" W


492.52'(S)


Δ=0° 20' 27"


R=87958.42'(S)


L=523.13'(S)


CH=N 56° 31' 31" W


523.13'(S)


N 56° 15' 19" W


257 02'(S)


453 95'198 32'158.50'158.75'158.75'71.13'


11
4.4


4'
20


5.8
8'


20
5.8


8'


122.46'


241.80'


136.80'


125.29'


125 50'


125.56'


125.56'


125.00'


252.54'


18.21'


PARCEL # 0519 007
ZONED:  A-R


PARCEL # 0519 022
ZONED:  A-R


PARCEL # 0519 061
ZONED:  A-R


EX
IST


ING
 LO


T L
INE


 PE
R M


INO
R S


UB
DIV


ISI
ON


 PL
AT


850


860


850


850


84
0


850


850


PROPOSED
SHARED
DRIVEWAY
TYP.


DY


H


DY
H


PROPOSED ALTERNATE
DRIVEWAY LOCATION
FOR LOT 7


PROPOSED 25'
UNDISTURBED
BUFFER


25
'


PROPOSED 25'
UNDISTURBED
BUFFER


25
'


PROPOSED 25'
UNDISTURBED
BUFFER


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


PROPOSED
SHARED
DRIVEWAY
TYP.


15'


EXISTING
EDGE OF
PAVEMENT


EXISTING
POWER POLE


R15'


R15'


The Drawings, Specifications and other
documents prepared by Moore Bass
Consulting, Inc. (MB) for this Project are
instruments of MB for use solely with
respect to this Project and, unless
otherwise provided, MB shall be deemed
the author of these documents and  shall
retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including the
copyright.


C
:\A


41
.0


08
\W


or
kf


ile
s\


A
41


8-
R


ez
on


e-
E


xh
ib


it-
01


dw
g,


 P
LA


N
, s


sh
an


ks
,  


A
ug


 1
4,


 2
01


4 
- 


9
57


:5
4a


m


A418-Rezone-Exhibit-01.dwg


805 N. GADSDEN STREET
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32303


CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHORIZATION NO. 00006108


1.0


CONCEPTUAL


PLAN


S
O


U
T


H
 
J
E


F
F


 
D


A
V


I
S


 
D


R
I
V


E


S
U


B
D


I
V


I
S


I
O


N


B
R


E
N


T
,
 
L


L
C


2
1
0
 
N


.
 
J
E


F
F


 
D


A
V


I
S


 
D


R
I
V


E


F
A


Y
E


T
T


E
V


I
L


L
E


,
 
G


A
 
3
0
2
1
4


1 inch =          ft.


GRAPHIC SCALE


0 30 60


30


15


NOT TO SCALE


VICINITY MAP


DEVELOPMENT DATA
SOUTH JEFF DAVIS SUBDIVISION -


LAND LOT 87, 5TH DISTRICT


APPLICANT:  BRENT, LLC
ADDRESS:  210 N. JEFF DAVIS DRIVE, FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214
TELEPHONE:  (770) 461-0478
PROPERTY OWNER:  MAX FULLER
ADDRESS:  335 GOZA ROAD, FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30215
TELEPHONE:  (770) 301-4882
CONSULTANT:  MOORE BASS CONSULTING, INC.
ADDRESS:  324 INDUSTRIAL BLVD., MCDONOUGH, GA 30253
TELEPHONE:  (770) 914-9394
SOURCE OF DATA:  MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT PREPARED BY FOUR
CORNERS SURVEYING, L.L.C., DATED 11/13/2013.
LOCATION:  FAYETTE COUNTY, GA
PROJECT AREA:  10.56 ACRES GROSS
CURRENT ZONING:  A-R
PROPOSED ZONING:  R-45
TYPE OF SUBDIVISION:  SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS:  8
LOT SIZE:  1.00 AC. (MIN).
TYPE OF STREETS:  PUBLIC (EXISTING)
BUILDING SETBACKS:


FRONT:  60'
REAR:  40'
SIDE:  20'


UTILITIE
WATER:  FAYETTE COUNTY WATER DEPARTMENT
SEWER:  ON-SITE SEPTIC SYSTEMS


SHELBY  LN.


BR
IE


RW
OO


D 
 D


R.


CA
LL


AW
AY


  R
D.


SOUTH JEFF DAVIS  DR.


AMBERWOOD DR.


EM
ER


AL
D 


LA
KE


 D
R.


OLD SOUTH CT.


CAVALIER CT.


AN
TE


BE
LL


UM


WAY


WAY


WAR
REN


LAMAR LN.


SITE







834


838


842


846


850


854


858


862


866


870


874


13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00 25+00


LOT 1
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 1000+
S.D. RT - 578'±


LOT 2
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 1000+
S.D. RT - 584'±


LOT 3
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 1000+
S.D. RT - 607'±


LOT 4
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 1000+
S.D. RT - 641+


LOT 5
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 559'±
S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 7
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 605'±
S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 7
ALTERNATE DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 627'±
S.D. RT - 1000+


LOT 8
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 624'±
S.D. RT - 1000+


834


838


842


846


850


854


858


862


866


870


874


26+00 27+00


LOT 6
DRIVEWAY
S.D. LT - 580'±
S.D. RT - 1000+


The Drawings, Specifications and other
documents prepared by Moore Bass
Consulting, Inc. (MB) for this Project are
instruments of MB for use solely with
respect to this Project and, unless
otherwise provided, MB shall be deemed
the author of these documents and  shall
retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including the
copyright.


C
:\A


41
.0


08
\W


or
kf


ile
s\


A
41


8-
R


ez
on


e-
E


xh
ib


it-
01


dw
g,


 P
R


O
F


IL
E


, s
sh


an
ks


,  
A


ug
 1


4,
 2


01
4 


- 
9


58
:1


3a
m


A418-Rezone-Exhibit-01.dwg


805 N. GADSDEN STREET
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32303


CERTIFICATE OF
AUTHORIZATION NO. 00006108


2.0


SIGHT DISTANCE


PROFILE


S
O


U
T


H
 
J
E


F
F


 
D


A
V


I
S


 
D


R
I
V


E


S
U


B
D


I
V


I
S


I
O


N


B
R


E
N


T
,
 
L


L
C


2
1
0
 
N


.
 
J
E


F
F


 
D


A
V


I
S


 
D


R
I
V


E


F
A


Y
E


T
T


E
V


I
L


L
E


,
 
G


A
 
3
0
2
1
4































































































































IMoore Bassi
 
CON S L T- I N G
 


July 10, 2014 


Mr. Pete Frisina
 
Director
 
Fayette County Planning and Zoning
 
140 Stonewall Avenue
 -	 ' 


Fayetteville, Georgia' 30214 


RE:	 Rez6ningPetition 1235-14 and Revised Plat-RP~052-14
 
South JeffDavis Road Subdivision
 
MB Project No.: A41.008
 


,Dear Mr. :Fnsina: 


We respedfully- reqlJest totable'the sl,lbj~ct matter befor~ you to allow us time to work 
'with staff tQfind solutionsforissues of concern ,th9t were presented to the Plannir;tg , 
Commission atitsmeetjng onJuly 2,2014: The'Plarjniog-C9rnmissi6ds ' ­


, recoh;1f;iend.ation o"f approvaltbR~5b Zoning and the conditions,p~aceCiJlIpon that 
appr:o~al win h-ave an impact- on the development of this 'parcel that has the applicant 
reconsiGleringtheir options. If p6ssibte. we wouldli'ke to table this reque.stuAtll the 
.August 28 'Boara of Commissioner's,Meeting. '~ 


Tn~nk you for your help in this matter. 


, 324 Industrial Blvd .• McDonough GA 30253 • 770.914,9394 office' 770.914.9596 ·fa·x • ww.w.mO(Tfe.bass·.com 
, Atlan-ta '•. Pan-a ina Ci't,Y o Tall-ahassee ' , 





		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning...35-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning Petition 1235-14 Backup







